MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

with
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORTS

6, 2014

FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 3

mk.u_,.mmm Y

at

it

s Lk,
i __._t.__. LR i




MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2014

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INDEPERDENT AUDMTOR'S REFPORT ..oevvvivnecivrerenns

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING ARD ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING

TRANSMITTAL LETTER. ..ccovivivivininmminiesisississsasiaman i e sissasisnsnes

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS .o

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL FOSITION.......c. i,

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES..
BALANCE SHEET GDVFRNMENTAL FUNDS v
RECONCILIATTON OF THE GDWRNHENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION....

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS ... .....oiirirerarreee
RECONCILIATION OF THE CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF

ACTIVITIES. . i s i b bt sr v e e e snva s s e e

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION PROPRIETARY FUNDS..

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND

NET POSITION PROPRIETARY FUNDS. ..ot ivviincn s
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS PROPRIETARY FUNDS.. ‘an
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION FIIIUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS . it iririvissrisnsr s s a0 e s i st e

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE ....ooivvacns
LTABILITY AND INSURANCE FUND BUDGETARY
COMPARISON SCHEDULE.......ciiiiiiicrrinirisiarerisrssanrssssssssmsernnnnvens
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES FUND BUDGETARY
COMPARISON SCHEDULE. ....oceevinivinivinisisisncersiesnsrnreniriassssssassnss

Papc

b

r -]

11

12
13

kX

46

47



Menard County, Hlinois
Table of Contenty — Continucd

HEALTH DEPARTMENT FUND BUDGETARY COMPARISON
SCHEDULE .. "
COUNTY HIGHWAY FUND BUDGETARY COMPARISON
SCHEDULE. ..o eeeeteeemeeeeemeeeestme e seeae b ea e e baeseeetan st e eabaabsemrasban o
COUNTY MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND BUDGETARY COMPARISON
SCHEDULE ..
SCHEDULE. OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS (REGULAR)
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND......veeeceeveemeeeeimeeenn e
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS (ECO)
ILLINOLS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND......cooveeiviirenieeriiorare
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS (SLEP)
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND.....ccovvimrrirnareiensiare n
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS (REGULAR)
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND....o.ooeoemeieeeeeamn
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS (ECO)
TLLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND.....cccvvviniineirrarecnnnss
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS (SLEP)
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND....o..ooeooemeiceeeen
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION. .............

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL
L
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES NONMAJOR GOYERNMENTAL

COMBINING QT,&TEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FRIVATE-PUBPOSE TRUST FIINDS.... i i iesanananne
COMEINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCTARY NET

POSITION PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS..c.cocviiriiiirariirananinanana:

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AGENCY

48

49

50

M

32

53



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'SREPORTS

spi0dayf
s, 4031pny Juapuadapur



MJF
Michael .J. Feriozzi, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITCR'S REFORT

To the Chairman and other Cowunty Commissioners
Menard County, Mllinois

Report on the Financial Statements

I have audited the accompanying financial stalements of the govemmental aclivities, ihe business-
type activities, the discrelely presented component unit, each major fund, and the apprepate
remaining fund information of Menard County,, Illinois as of and {or the year ended November 31),
2014, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statementy

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presenlaiion ol these {inancial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stales of America; ihis
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant w the preparation

and fair prescotation of financial statements thal ae free from material misstalement, whether duc to
fraud or error.

Audifor's Responsibility

My responsibility is o express opinions on these inancial s(atements based on my audit. | conducled
my audit in sccordace with auditing standards gencrally accepted in the United States o’ America
and the standards applicable to financial audits conlained in Goverrmment dudiring Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the Uniled States. "Thosc standards require that T plan and perform the
audit (o obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statements are frec of material
misstatement. My awdit of Menard County, Ilinois’ business-type aclivities was nol conducted in
accordance with Goverameant duditing Standards.

An audil involves performing procedures to obtain audil evidence about the amounts and disclesures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks o material misstaternent of the financial statements, whether dus to fraud or
error. In making those risk asscssments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity™s
preparalion and lair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedurcs that
are appropriatc in the cireumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the catiny’s intemal control.  Accordingly, I express no such opinion. An audit also
includies evalualing the appropriateness of accounting pelicies used and the reusonableness of

1316 South Glenwood Springfield, linois 62704 (217) 522-5659



Michael J Ferinzzi, CPA Poge 2

significant sccounling estimates macde by management, as well as evaluating the overall prescnlation
of the financial statcmenis.

I believe that the audit evidence [ obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis lor my
audit opinions.

Cpinions

In my opinicn, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respeciive linancial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activitics, the discretcly
presenled component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Menard
County, Hlinols as of Novenber 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position and cash
flows, where applicable, thereof for the vear then ended in conformity with accounling principles
generally aceepled in the United States of Ameriea,

Other matters
Regquired Supplementary Information

Accounting principles genemlly accepted in the United States of America require that the
munagement 'y discussion and analysis on pages [ through XVIII, and the budpectary comparison
information, schedules of emplover contribwtions, and schedules of funding progress on pages 37
through 56 be presented 1o supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although
not part of the hasic financial statements is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board who considers it 1o be a significant part of financial poming for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate opcrational, economie, or historical conlext. T applied certain hmiled
procedures 10 the required supplementary information m accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America which consisied of mquines ol managemen
aboul the methods of preparing the information and, comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses io my inquinies, the basic fingncial staterments, aud other knowledge T
ohlained duning wmy andit of the basic financial statements. 1 do not express an opinion or other any
form of assurancc on the information because ihe limiled procedwres do not provide me with
sufficient evidence Lo express an opinion or provide any assurance.

ther Information

My audit was conducted for the purpese of forming opinions on the financial statcments that
collectively comprise Menard County’s basic firancial statements. The transmiital letter from the
Menard County Treasurer, and supplementary information sections are presented for purposcs of
additional analysis and are not required parts of the basic financial statements,

The transmitral letter from the Menard Couwnty Treasurer has not been subjecled to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the bdasic financial statements and, accordingly, T do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on it.

The supplementary inlormation is the responsibility of manzgement and includes the combining
nonmgior funds and the fiduciary funds® financial staferents. The supplementary information was

1316 Sowuth Glenwaod Springfield, Rlinois 62704 (217) 522-5689



Michael J. Feriozzi, (IPA Page 3

derived from and relates directly lo the underlying accounting and other records used (o prepare
the basic fAnancial statements. Such informalion has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and cerlxin additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements or lo the basic financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
Stales of America. In my opimion, the supplemenlary information is Tairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial staterments laken as & whole.

Other reporting required by Goverrnment Auditing Standards

In accordance wilh Government duditing Standards, 1 have also issued my report dated May 11,
2015 on my consideralion of Menard County, Illinois” intemal conlrol over financial reporting and
my tests of compliance with cermain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant apreements and
othcr matiers. The purpose of that report is 1o describe the scope of my testing of intemnal contrel
over financial reporting and compliance and the resuiis of" that testing and not to provide an opinion
on the inlernal control over financial reporling or an compliance. That report is an fntegral part of an
audit perforied in accordance with Government Auditing Stundards in considering Menard County,
Hlinois’ inlernal control over financial reporting and compliance.

miehatl {. fniopi
Springfield, Illinois
May 11, 2015

1316 South Glenwopd Springfield, inois 62704 (217) §22-8689
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED TN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUIMTING
STANDARDS

To the Chatrman and other County Commissioners
Menard County, llincis

1 have audited, in accordance with auditing standards gemerally accepted in the United Stales of
America and the standards apphcable to financial audits contained in Goversmern Auditing
Stardards fssued by the Compimoller General of the Tnited Sfates, the financial stalements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented componeni unit, each
major fund, and the aggregate remeining fund information of Menard County, linois as of and for
the year ended Movember 30, 2014, which collectively comprise the County’s basic finanetal
statemnenls, and have issued my repont therson dated May 11, 2015, The financial statcments of the
business-type activities were nol audited in sccordapce with Government Auditing Standurds.

Inicrnal Controf over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing my audit. T considered Menard County, Ilinois® internal control over
financial reporting {inlernal control) lo determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of cxpressing my opinions on the financial statements, but nod
Tor the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control.
Aceordingly, I do not express an opinion on the eflectivenass of Menard County Wllinois’ internal
comtrol.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct Inisstatements cn a timely basis. A maferial weakness is a deficiency or
combination of deficiencies in inlernal conirol, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material 1nisstatement of the entity’s financial statements will nol be prevenled, or delecled and
correcicd on a timely basis. A significarnr deficiency is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies
in internal comrof that is less severe than a meferial wealmess, yel important enough to merit
atiention by those charged wilh governance.

My consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was [or the limiled purpose
described in the preceding paragraph and would not necessarily disclose deficiencies in intcrnal
comirgl over fmanciel reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
Given these limilations, during my audit I did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that I
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may cxist that have nol been
identified.

1316 South Glenwood Springfield, Illinois 62704 (217) 5228688
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Compliance and Other Mufters

As part of oblaining rcasonable assurance about whether Menard County llineis® fnancial
staterments are free of matenial misstolement, 1 perfonped tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and prant aprecment’s, noncompliance with which could
hove g direct and malerial effect on the detennination of financial stalement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of my audit and,
accordingly, [ do not express such an opinion.

Purpose of this Report

This purpese of this report is selely to describe the scope of my testing of internal control and
compliance and the resulls of that tesling, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
enlity’s intemael control or on compliance. This repor is an integral part oi an audil performed in
accordance with Governmert Auditing Standards in considering the cntity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this commumeation is not suitable for any other purpose.

Springficld, Ulinois
May 11,2013

1316 South Glenwaod Springfield, Ilinols 62704 (217 522-8689
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Pam Bauser
- MENARD COUNTY
Treasurer and Collector

P. 0. Box 436 Petersburg, Illinois 62675
Phone: 217-632-2333 . Fax: 217-632-5120
Rosanne Snyder, Chief Deputy Jolene Hudspeth, Deputy

May 11, 2015

To the Chairman of the County Board,
Membears of the Board of Commissioners and
Citizens of Menard County

Gentlemen:

As Treasurer of Menard County, | am pleased to present the County's annual financial report for
the fiscal year ended November 30, 2004, The financial statements included in this report conform to
Generally Accepted Principles in the United States {GAAP) as established by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board [GASE].

The annual financial repart was prepared with an emphasis on full disclosure of the financial
activities of the County. Responsibility for the completeness and the relfability of the content rests with
County management. To provide a reasonahle hasis for making these representations, management af
the County strives constantly to maintain a comprehensive set of internal controls, designed to ensure
the agspte nf the ooty are protected from lass, thelt or mizuse, These controls also en=ire that
adeguate sveountng data is recortded @ allow lor e preparation of Tinancial statements i contoremty
with generally accepted accounting principles. Because the cost of internal controls sheuld not cutweigh
their benefits, the County's internal controls have been designed to provide reasonable rather than
absalute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. The data
prasented in the report is believed to be complete and reliable in all material respects and is reparted in
a manner that presents fairly the financial position and results of operations as measured by the
financial activity of the Counby’'s various funds. All staternents and disclosures necessary for the reader
to abtain an understanding of the County's financial activities have been included.

A5 a recipient of Federal and State financial assistance, the County’s internal controls must also
ensure, as well as document, compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to thesae programs.
Management pericdically evaluates the effectiveness of the County’s internal controls.

Michael ). Feriozzi, certified public accountant, pravided the independent audit of Menard
County's financial statements. The goal of the independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance the
financial statements of the County for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2014, are free of material
misstatement. The audit included considerations of our internal control over financial reporting as a
hasis for designing auditing procedures and invelved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used, and the



County’s compliance with applicable laws and regulations. In addition, with his communications letter
to the audit committee he continues to remind us to increase and maintain cur organizational emphasis
on monitoring the collection status of our accounts receivable for health services provided by our
emergency medical services and Sunny Acres Nursing Hoeme.

The independent auditor's reports directly precede this letter,

This annual financial report includes a narrative introduction from management in the form of
tManagement's Discussion and Analysis [MD&A) that provides an overview and analysis to accompany
the basfc financial statements. This letter of transmittal 15 designed to complement the MD&A and
should be read In conjunction with it.

PROFILE OF MENARD COUNTY

Menard County was established in the winter of 1839 by acticn of the lllingis State Legistaturs,
being one of three counties split ofl from Sangamon Counky. At the time, Ahraham Lincoln was a
Representative to the State Legislature and Chairman of the Committee on Counties, The bill to separate
Menard from Sangamon was written and presented by Lincoln on January 16, 1839 and passed the
legislature on February 15, 1838, The action defined the boundaries of Menard County and provided for
an election on the first Monday in April 1835 to elect public officials and three county commissioners.
Cwer one hundred sixty years later, an November 7, 2000 the voters pazsed the propesition to be
represeqted by five commissioners elected from single member districts.

Menard County is located slightly west of the center of the state and contains approximately 314
sguare miles, Petershurg, the county seat, is about 20 miles northwest of Springfield. Early inhabitants
from Southern states and Eurgpean immigrants came to Menard County to farm. The county continues
1o be known for its rural character,

Menard County is non-hame rule and governed by the [llingis County Code, Chapter 55 ILCS 5/1-
1001, et. seq., and related acts. Menard County's government consists of thirteen departments, six
alected oficials, ihe judiciary, and a five member County Beard elected from singie imembey disiizts,
The board is responsible for establishing policies and authorizing resolutions for the administration of
the County; hiring and supervision of the department heads; appointing committees for the benefit of
county taxpayers and residents; and approving the annual budget and tax levy within the county
organization,

Nlingis has more taxing districts than any other state, In Menard County there are forty-seven
{47] taxing districts. The County Treasurer collects and distributes taxes for all these districts. The
County Board is responsible for appointing the board members of special districis like the road districts,
the fire districts, rescue squad, and cemetery districts. Special districts are not part of county
govaernment as they set their own budgets and tax levies.

SERWICES PROVIDED

Menard County provides a full range of governmental services including law enforcement,
construction and maintenance of county roads and bridges, property assessment, and collection of
taxes, official records, voter registration, elections, document recordings, maintain vital records, GIS
mapping, comprehensive planning and growth management, & court system and related support
functions, public health, animat control, emergency disaster planning and response, employmeant and



training, senior transport, emergency public relief, and emergency medical services. All of these services
and the related administrative functions comprise our Governmental Activities.

tn addition to the above general government activities, the County owns and operates a skillad
care nursing home. Sunny Acres Nursing Home accepts private pay, Medicaid, and Medicare patients,
When beds are available, they are able to offar Respite and Daycare services. Countryside Estates of the
County, situated next door to Sunny Acres, opengd in 2000 and is an independent living facility. These
two proprietary operations comprise the Business-type Activities of the County.

The firancial reporting entity includes all the funds of our Governmental and Business-type
Activities as well as the component units for which the County is financially accountable. The Menard
County Emergency Telephone Systemn [ETSB) 911 iz included in the County's basic financizl statements as
a "discretely” presented component unit. The fund for Emergency 911 appears in a separate column in
the povarnment-wide financial statemnenls to emphasize that it is separate from the County and to
differentiate its financial position and results of aperation from that of the County. A separate board,
appointed by the County Commissioners, administers this component unit. The Menard County Health
Department is included in the County’s basic financial statements as a “blended” companent unit
because it s fiscally dependent on the County. The commissioners also appoint the members of the
heath department’s board.

ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

Menard County, including the nursing home and independent living facility, is the county's
largest employer, Mast county residents commute to Springfield for employment. The County's annual
unemployment rate for 2014 averaged 5.7%, this was down 1.4% from the previous year. Menard
County is included in the Local Workforce Area 20 [LWIA 20) which also includes Cass, Logan, Christian
and %angamon Counties. The unemployment rate for Lwia 20 was 6.3% in 2014, down from the 8% in
2013,

Countywide sales tax revenue from retail business decreased from 2013 to 2044, down from the
GUERIQUS Year conpartscn of an approdimate decrease o 5.0%, Public safety sales 1ax revenue increasad
approximately 5.95%. The counky’s share of income tax also increased approximately 7. 20%. The State
of lllingis has heen remitting payments in & mare timealy matter than in past few years,

Other departments that rely on payments from the State of [llingis are Sunny Acres Nursing
Home, Emergency Medical Services, Senior Transport and Highway. The county has been preparing for
the shortalis from the State the last eleven (11} years.

MAIOR INITIATIVES

Reronstruction and widening of the Athens Blacktop Road (CH 2) from just west of the
intersection of A. Kent Street to east of Paul Rogers’ driveway was opened for traffic in 1ate November
2014, The |oeal share of this project is reported as “construction in progress” in the goverament-wide
financial statements at year end. We expect to acknowledge and repaort this completed project as a
depreciable assef in 2006, P.H. Broughton & Sons, Inc. of Springfieid, liinois was the low bidder for this
project. Construction cost was $1,651.338. Construction funding for this prajects includes $792,804 from
Federal Surface Transportation Rural (STR) funds, $210,700 from State Matching funds and $157,334
from local Federat Aid Matching Funds.



Approximately 18 miles of county highway were chip sealed in 2014, This included West and East
Qakford Avenues, Sunny Acres Road, Chautaugua Road, Curtis Blacktop Road and one mile at the north
end of Fairgrounds Street. This work required 72,920 gallons of CRS-2 road oil and 2,800 tons of CA-16
chips.

No bridges were replaced in 2014 on the County Highway system or on the Road District system.
We currently have two [2) Road district bridges that are closed, five (5] Road District bridges that are
pasted for 15 Tons or less and cne {1} Road District bridge rated for legal load only. All of these bridges
have timber substructures that have exceeded their design life and need to ba replaced. Temporary
repairs, where feasible, have been made but time is running out before more closures take plarce.

On December 1, 2014, the Menard County Board of Commissioners entered into a management
contract with Heritage Operations Group LLC, cut of Bloomingtan, llingis. Heritage will manage Sunny Acres
Mursing Home and Countryside Estates of the County for Menard County and provide related consulting
services to the Board of Commissioners. 1t15 the commissioners' expectation and hope, among many, that
the County's assocfation with Heritage will result in operating cost efficiencies and additional revenue via
ineraased occupancy and favorable price negotiations that will offset and exceed the management fee,
expected to be five percent of net revenues as defined.

Direct operation of the Menard County Health Department ceased on August 21, 2014, Menard
County and the Menard County Health Department Board entered into an intergovernmental agreement
with the Sangamoen County Department of Fublic Health with an effective date of September 1, 2014
Through the Local Health Protection Grant, approximately $63,000 provided through the lllingis
Department of Public Health and a monthly fee of $5,000, Sangamon provides public health services to
residents of Menard County which include programs for infectious disease, food protection, private
sewage disposal and potable water supply. Other optional programs which may be affered are: WIC,
Family Case Management, Vision and Hearing, Home Health, Carelink, Tobacca Prevention, Tanning,
Lead Poisoning Prevention, Women's Health, Dental Sealant, Emergency Preparedness and Weed
Control. Once the local office bas been established, it is anticipated that there will be an increase in the
use of these services. Sangamon County Depariment of Public Health Director, lim Stone, reports to the
penard Copniy Board of Commissioners on a Lichihly basis and conducts quarerly mesimgs with e
Menard County Board of Health.

Additional repairs to the courthouse roof are expected in 2015, and the commissioners expect to
be able to renovate property purchased in late November 2014 for $185,000 that will eventuaily house
our EMS department. Such costs will more likely than not be quite substantial and will probably require
the use of debt funding.

OTHER INITIATIVES

A8 a consequence of transitioning job responsibilities of County Coordinator to Dara
Worthington, the Menard County Community Services Office terminated iis provision of financial
assistance in the form of rent, utilities, etc. through the Emergency Food and Shelter program {FEMA),
United Funds of Menard County, Inc., Friend in Need and Menard County Salvation Army. Some of the
services may move ta ancther community-based organization within the county and some may cease
altogether,

Senfor Transportation continues to serve seniors 60+ years of age with grant funds through Area
Agency on Aging for Lincolnland at a fairly consistent budget and level of service. Rural Transportation is
still in the planning stages with the anticipated roll out sometime during 2015 afler final appropriations



have been arrived upon for the Downstate Operating Assistance Program funds through the [linois
Department of Transportation. Both Menard Senior Transporlation and Senior Services of Central inois
are still the planned operators of the system.

Menard County Zoning Office head, Steve Duncan, left the county in September 2014, Menard
County Assessor, Jason LeMar stepped into that position until we could get someone new hired. Zoning
permits are required for building new constructions and also for additions to a current building with in
the county outside of city limits for Athens, Greenview and Petersburg. During 2014, 19 permits were
issuad for new homes and 36 permits were issued for other building projects.

The office of the Menard County Clerk, Patricia Duncheon, is responsibie for the recording of
documents and issuing licenses, Those included in the recordings and licenses are marriage licenses, civil
unions, death certificates, deeds, affidavits, mortgages, bills of sale, discharges from the armed forces,
liquor licenses, raffle permits, assumed names for businesses, firework permits, ete,

The County Clerk’s office is also responsille for all elections in the county. On-line voter
registration is available between the county and the State Board of Elections. Waoter registration and the
entire election process are continually changing with new laws, procedures, and reguirements,

The November 2014 General Election cost the county approximately 533,552 with a 57.07%
turnout of eligible voters. The cost per voter was approximately 56.77.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION, MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL

The Board of Commissioners, by lllingis State Statute, adopts an annuzl appropriation budget for
the County on or around the last day of November, Appropriations represent the maximum
expenditures authorized during the fiscal year and they cannot legally be exceeded unless amended by
the County Board. Unexpected amounts lapse at fiscal year-end.

Historically, the County Board takes a conservative approach toward financial management
~while contirirg to provide good value to aur gitizens. The County has struggied o retain and resiore
the General Fund's fund balance when expenditures have been exceeding revenues. In late 2013 work
began on repairing and replacing the courthouse roof. It was complated in 2014 with a total cost of
approximately 5350,800 which was funded with funds from our General Fund.

Crur ahjective of retaining and restoring the General Fund’s fund balance has minimized the need
for short-term borrowing, ensures olligations can be met and has resulted in a “cushion” against
unexpected decreases in general revenues,

The General Fund had an ariginal Ioan 10 the Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Fund in the
amount of $327,000,00 which provided start-up tosts to ailow that department to purchase capital
assets and provide operating capital to finance patient accounts and taxes receivable. Monthly principal
and interest are being paid to the General Fund with an ocutstanding balance of 584,543 on November
30, 2014,

The County continues to face future funding demands for several areas of government: {1) the
increased cost of providing optional health insurance for employees, (2] the rising cost of property,
casuzalty and liability insurance, (2} the censtant maintenance and repair required to preserve the
County’s ageing buildings, (4} the remodeling of the new EMS building, (5] the replacement costs for
raads and bridges, {6) the uncontrollable costs of unfunded mandates by our legislature and [7} the



pressure and demands from the taxpayers for higher levels of service. This condition has been
negatively impacted by the fiscal status of the State of lllinais and our federal government.

The County Treasurer pools and invests all funds of the County within Investment Policy
guidelines established Movember 1999 {revised Aprfl 29, 2014) and according to federal, state and other
legal requirements, most particularly the lllingis Complies Statutes 30 [LC5 235/2. Cash is invested in
insured and collateralized interest bearing demand deposits and money market accounts, certificates of
deposit and the lllingis Fund Money Market investment pool that is administered by the lilinois State
Treasurer. Thig is the fourth year in a row the interest received fell short of the budgeted amount with a
shartfall in FY 2014 of approximately 39%.
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS
Management’s Discussion and Analysic (M D &A4)
For the year ended November 30, 2014

The County of Menard, Illinois® {County) management’s discussion and analysis provides an overview of the
County’s financial activities for the year ended November 30, 2014 and is designed to (o) assist the reader in
focusing on significant fnancial issues, (b) identify changes in the County®s financial position (its ability to
address the next and subsequent years’ challenges), {c) tdentify any material deviations from the [nancial plan
{(the approved budget), and (d) identify the individual fund issues or concerns.

This discussion and aralysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic finarcial statements
and iz designed to foeus on the curvent vear's financial activities, resulting changes, and currently known facts.
We encourage vou W mead it in conjunclion with the transmittal letter at the front of this repoerl and the County”s
audited hasic financiaf statements, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

» AL November 30, 2014 the County’s asscts cxcceded ils habihities by $24.651,000. OF this amount
F13,987,000 is invested in capital assets, net of related debt; $6,729.000 is restricted for special purposes
and uses; leaving $1,716,000 available for the County’s ongoing goveramental activities and $2,219,000
available for ils ongoing busiress-fype gotivities.

* The net position of our govermmental activities decreased $136,000, or .8%4; the net position of our busiress-
type activities decrcased $15,000 or 2%.

» General tax vevenues inereased 3.3%, with property taxes increasing 2.9%,.

*  The cost of the County’s govermmental activities decrcased 4.3 %, This, primarily, because we continue to
work at conserving our rogds and bridges net essets for future construction costs funding and
discontinuation and presentation of self insured employes health benefit cosis,

s  The met charges for services for the County’s Business-fype aciivities decreased 3.8% while expenses
decreased 1.4%,

s The (Feneral Fund expericnced a decrease in the fund balance of $314.000 before the retumn of $60,000
from our business-pupe activities resuiting in a $254,000 net decrease in the fund balance, This negative
result was caused by a 340,000 charge 1o close out the Counly™s sell-insuned health benefils program and a
charge of $209,000 i absork the Menard County Health Department’s accumulated deficit at November 34,
2014, Our annual transfer to the Building fmprovenent Fund remained imehanged at $50,000.

o The Emergency Medical Services Fund  had a dgcrease in the fund balance of $8,000 resulting in a fund
balance of $326,000 at year end. The decrcase for the year was afler capital outlay of $150,000 and debt
service of 510,000, The loan from the Gereral Fund decreased $11.000 to $35,000,

o The Health Department Fund incurred a $105,000 reduction in fund balance, resuiting in a deficit fund
balance of $209,000 that was absorbed by the County’s General Fund. The Menard County Board of Health
and the Coouty’s Board of Commissioncrs catered into a contract with the Sangamon County Health
Depariment in August 2014 where by Sangamon provides and administers the continuation of basic health
services in the County, Presently. the current interpretation of the contract provides that Sangamoen will
receive Menard County’s annaal basic health grant from the Illinois Depariment of Public health, $63,000,
and a monthly fes of $5,000 resulting in an annual cost to the County of $123,000, The monthly fee is
effectively paid by the Counfy’s Gererad Frmd via a transfer to the Health Department Fund.




Menard County, Itlinoix
Management Discussion and Analysis — continied

« In June 2010 we changed our arrangement for providing group heaith hespitalization and medical benefits
[or ¢ligible and participating County employees from using commercial insurance providers fo a nsk
retention arrangement wherelry the County and participating emmployees dircelly fund the related costs,
including the actual coss of claims, reinsurance protection costs, and administrative costs. An internal
sorvice fund, the Self Tnsurance Fund, was established to account for and report all of the monetary and
economic aspects of providing Lhis service benefit o other County funds and deparments. The Saff
Insurance Fund experienced a $154,000 favorable reselt for 2013, resulting in a deflicit to date of $45,000.
The Board of Commissioners discontinued this self funding arrangement effective December 31, 20013 and
replaced it with a more convenlional commercial type arangement. The cumulalive Joss at thal date,
approximately $40,000 was abzorbed by the County’s General Fund.

USING THIS ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

The hasic financial stomements focns on the Connty as a whale (governmernt-wide) and on the mafor individudal
Sunds, Both of these perspectives (goversment wide and major fund) allow the financiat statements users to
address relevant questions, broaden a basis for comparison (year to0 vear or governmeni to govermment), and
enhance the County’s financial accountability.

hverview of the financial statements

This annual fnancial report consists of four parts — maragement's discussion and analysis (this section), the
harie financial starements, required supplementory informarion, and an optiomal section thal provides conebining
statements for nonmajor governmental fimdr and the fiduciary funds, The basic financial statements inchode
mwa kinds of statements that present different views of the County.

The [irst two slalcinents are government-wide financial statements that provide both long-term and short-term
information about the Counby’s overall financial status.

‘The remaining staterments are fund financial starements that focus on individual puris of the Coounty government,
reparting Lhe County’s operations in more deieif than the government-wide stqtements -

# The governmental funds statements tell how general povernment sorvicos like public safotly, and roads
and bridges were financed in the short wmm as well what remains for future spending,  Such funds
include the generaf fund, and several other funds that are special revenue funds, funds that account for
and report the proceads of specific revenue sources that are restricted {or use for specified sources other
than debt scrvice or capital projects. The County does not use or is required to use debt service ar
capiial projects funds,

¥ Propricfory fundy stalements offer shor-term and long-term [nancial infornmation about the activities
the government operates like businesses (enterprise funds), such as Swnny Acres Nursime Home and
Countryside Estates of the Cowmry, and services the County provides internally on a cost reimbursement
basis to funds and departments (imternal service funds) like the risk retention aspeets of self funding
group 1ype medical and hospitalization benefits for County employees.

Fiduciary funds statements provide nformation about the financial relationships — like the Menard Cowmty
Colfector, and the Township Dridee and Township Motor Fuel Tar arrangements with the County’s road
districts — in which the County acts solely as a trusice or agent for the benefit of others, to whom the
resources in guestion belong,
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Menard County, Hilinots
Manogement Discussion and Analysis — continved

The financial statements also include rofes that explain some of the information in the financial stalements and
provide more detailed data, The basic financial stotements are Tollowed by a section of required supplementary
information that further explains and supports the information in the financial statements. These required parts
of our annual financial report are amapged and relate o cach other as follows —

l — e
[ [
Managewment's | Basic l Requirced
Discussion | Finuncial Supplementary
ard . of | Smtements | ard | Information
Analysis 1 !
|
— / i T~
Goveroment-wide Fund ‘ Nofexs
Financtal Finaocial l e the
Statcmenits Statcments . | Financial
—
] L Sratemants
1
P
[ ]
|

In addilion to these required elements, we haye ingluded a section with combining slalements that provide
details about our rormgior governmental fimds and fideciary fimds.

The table that follows summarizes the major features of the County’s financial siatcrents, incleding the portion

of the County government they cover and the types of infonmation they contain. The remainder of this overview
section of management’s discussion and analysis explains the struelure and contents of each of the statements.
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Menard County, Hiinois.
Management Discussion and Analysis — continued

The Sterement of Activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during the
mogt reeent Migeal vear, I presents the revenues and expenses of the County with the difference between the two
reported as the change in mef position for the year.

Roth of these govermmeni-wide financial statements distinguish the various Aunctions of Menard County that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revennes (goversmental activities) from other funetions
that ar¢ intended Lo recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (husiness-type
cctivities).

‘The governmeniad activities of Menard County include gencral government, public safety, roads and bridges,
public health, judiciary and courl, county development, liability and insurance, retivement and FICA, public
welfure, and interest on long-term debt. Also included are the assets and liabilities of the Self Insurowce Fund,

The bisiness-type activities include Sunny Acres Nurging Home and Coumryside Estates of the County.

The government-wide fincncial statements also include legally separate component units, the Menard Cownny
Healtl Department, [or which the County is financially accountable, and the Meaard Cownty 211 Syatem, The
account balances and transactions of the Memwrd County Heaith Department have been blended into the
County’s financial statements. “Blending™ iz a process Iy which the account balances and lransactions of the
component unit are reported in a manncr similar to the account balances and transactions of the primary
government entity, The accounl balances and transactions of the Merard County 271 Sywatem are discretely
presented in the fnancial statements, A “disercte presenlation” displays the component unit’s financial
information in a separate column(s) apart from the primary government,

Fund finarncial stutements

A fund is a grouping of related accoums Lhal is vsed to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activitics or objectives. The County like other state and local governments uses fimd
accountimg to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-relaled legal requirements.  All of the funds of
the County are categerized into three distinet fund Gypes, governmental fimds, propriciary finds, and fiduciary

Surds,

Croverameniul funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmcnital aclivities in
the government-wide financial stalements. However, unlike the guvermment-wide statements, govermmental
Junds' linancial statements only report on how gepneral government services were financed during the year as
well what financiat resourees remain for future spending,

Because the focus of goverrmental fundsy’ finaneial statements is narrower than that of the govermmeni-wide
finangial stalements, it is wseful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presenicd for governmental activities in \he governinem-wide financial slatements. By doing so,
financial slatement users may belier understand the Jong-term impact of the Counhy’s near-lerm Arancing
decisions. Both the governmenial finds® balance sheet and the guvernmental fund’s statement uf Feventes,
expenditures, and changes in fund balanees provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison herween
governsmenial funds and goverrnmental activities.

‘The County mainiains individual goversmentef funds. Information is reported separately in the povernmenial
Junds” balance sheet and in the governmented funds' statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
bafances for the General Fund, Liobility wnd Insurance Fund, Emergency Medical Services Fund, Health
Department Fund, County Highway Fund, and County Moter Fuel Tax ¥und, all of which are considered to
be major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggrevated presentation.
Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmented funds is provided elsewhere in ihis reporl.
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Menard Conunty, HHfinois
Managgement Discussion and Aralysis — continued

The County’s Board of Commissioners adopts an annual appropriations budget for ils governmenial funds.
Budgetary comparison schedules have been provided for the (eweral Fund and (he othor major fimds o
demonstrate budgetary compliance for these funds,

Proprictary fundy

The County maintains two types of propriciary funds, enterprize funds for the potivities the County operates like
businesses and frternal service funds  The Countly uses enterprise fomdy 10 account [or the [nancial activitics of
Sunny Acres Nursing Home and Countryside Estates of the County; an isfernal service fund is used to account
for the financial aciivities of the risk retenilon aspects of self funding group ovpe medical and hospitalization
benelins for cligihle and participaling counly employees.

Propriciary funds’ [inancial slalements provide the same type of information as (he government-wide [nancial
statements, only in more detail, The proprictary funds’ financial statements provide separate information for
Stnay Acres Nouesing Home and Comtryside Estates of the County (emterprise fimds) and the Self Insurarce
Frmd (interngl service fund).

Fiducigry Funds

Fiduciory funds are vsed 1o account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government.
Fiduciary funds ave not retlected in the poverameni-wide financial statements because the resources of those
funds are not available 10 suppont the County’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much
like that used for proprictary fuseds.

Notes fe the financial statementy

The notes provide additional information that is cssential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
governnent-wide and fund financial statements. The notes also include information thal is cesential to a full
understanding of the required supplementary information,

iker information

In additiom to the basic financial statements and the accompanying noics, Ums reponl also presents certan
required supplementary information concerning the County” sehedules of budectary comperisons, and progress

i furding its obligations to provide penston beaefits fo its employees and employer contributions.

Coumbining fisnd stetermeniy are also a part of this repart.
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Menard County, Hlinois
Management Discussion and Analysis — continued

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The table that follows presents a comparison of the County's condensed Statement of Financial Position as of
November 30, 2013 and 2014,

2043 2niq 2013 2014
| Current and other assets 5| 7332000 | 6,910,000 | § | 5,134,000 | 5,265,000 | § | 12,466,000 | 12,175,000
Capital assets 11,118,000 | 11,476,000 2,734,000 | 2,561,000 13,852,000 | 14,037,000
Current and other liabilities 647,000 1,466,000 | 1,450,000
Long-term debt outstanding - 50,000 40,000

o T

o ; 5 5
e g A i

Total ne position 5 | 17,680,000 | 17,543,000 | § | 7,122,000 | 7,107,000 | S | 24,802,000 | 24,650,000

The largest portion of the County’s net position is reflected in its investment in capital assets (land, buildings,
equipment, and infrastructure); less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The County uses
these capital assets to provide services to citizens and others: therefore, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the County’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of outstanding debt used to
acquire the assets it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Restricted net position represents a variety of programs, projects, services and funds that are subject to external
and internal restrictions on how they may be used. Both the County’s governmental activities and its business -
fype activities have restricted net position. This means that these net assets are not available for funding the
general operations of the related activity,

The remaining portion of the County’s net position, unrestricted net assets are available for funding general
operations related to the County’s governmental and business-type activities. The trend in the amount of the
County’s unrestricted net assets is a leading indicator of the County’s continued ability to fund its abligations
to citizens, creditors, and others. Unrestricted net assers increased $54,000 during the year. Unrestricted net
assets for govermmental activities decreased $122,000 or 6.6%. Business-type activities’ unrestricted net
assets increased 368,000 or 3.2%.
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Menard County, Illinois
Management Discussion and Analysis — continued

The table that follows presents a comparison of the County’s condensed statement of activities for the years
ended November 30, 2013 and 2014 and indicates how the net position changed each year.

(in r&_gmands_* a_j" dollars)

2013 | 2014 | | 2013 | 2014
r—Fmgrﬂm revenues
Charges for services $| 1,951 1,741 | 8| 6,638 | 6,220 8| 8589 | 7961
Grants and contributions 1,36l 653 i g 1,372 662
General revenues -
Property taxes 2,708 | 2,786 - - 2,708 | 2,786
Other taxes 1,869 | 1,940 - - 1,869 | 1940
23| 20 | 16 34| 36
Expenses
General government 1,240 | 1272 - - 1,240 | 1,272 |
Public safety 2,522 | 2,527 - - 2522 | 2,527
Roads and bridges 1,853 | 1,582 - - 1,853 | 1,582
Public health 619 296 - - 619 296 |
Judiciary and court 603 62 - - 603 602
County development 75 74 - - 75 7d
Liahility and insurance 77 246 - - 77 246
Retirement and FICA G0 622 - - G 622 |
Public welfare 45 115 - - 85 115
Interest on long-term debt - - - - - -
Sunny Acres Nursing Home - - 6,084 | 5787 6,084 | 5,787
Countryside Estates - - 369 413 369 413 |
Total expenses 7,674 7,336 6,453 | 6200 14,127 13,53 i(
Excess (deficiency) 238 | (196) 207 45 445 | (I51)
Transfers 60 60 (60) | (60) " 5
Increase (decrease) in
net position 298 | (136) 147 (15) 445 | (151) |

Governmental Activities
Program revenues for 2014 were $2,394,000, a decrease of $918,000 from 2013. These revenues,

consisting ol charges for services and grants and contributions, are derived from the programs
themselves and reduce the cost of the respective functions to the County. Grants and contributions
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Menard County, Illinois
Management Discussion ond Analysis — continued

decreased $750,000 primarily because of a net decrease in capital granis frem (he State of Ilinois for
roads and bridges and a permaneni decline tn Public Health grant programs as a consequence of the
County’s reconfiguration of the delivery of ibese services. This reconfliguration which included the
discontinvance of home health services also accounted for ihe decrease in charges for services.

frencral Tax Reventes

General tax revenues consist of properly taxes, stale income laxes shared by the slate of Iinois, mator foct laxes
allocaled by the slate of [inois, local sales taxes collected by the state of Mingis and distritnrted to the County,
and certain other taxes. Property taxes comprised 39% of the peneral tax revenues and are levied by the County
within the constraints of the Stale of Illinois property tax limitation few o assisl in [unding the costs of the
general government, public safety, roads and bridpes, refivement and FICA, and lability and insurance
propgrams. ‘The County has specilic property tax levies for costs associated with certain public safety program
costs, Nability and inswrance, roads amd bridges, conunty development, refivement and FICA, and public welfure
programs in addition to the general corporate [evy., The motor fuel taxes received by the County are restricted
for the rocds and bridges program. The public safety sales taxes are restricted for emergency medical services

(public saftiv),

The following tables display the chanpes in the County’s gereral fax revenwes for 20013 and 2014, and the
related changes in property faxes.

General Tax Revennes {to the nearest thousand dollars)

|| 2613 2014 Increase |
%

Property taxes $| 2,708,000 | 2,786,000 | 78.000 | 288
State income laxes GIZ000 | 466,000 | 44,000 | 7.i3
Motor fuel tuxes 314,008 | 314,000 - -
Public Safety Sales Tax 457,000 | 485,000 | 28,000 | 612
Sales taxes 408,000 | 405,000 | 000 | .73
Other faxes 73,0868 76,000 3000 | 4.18
Totel 5 | 4,577,000 | 4,727,600 | 130,000 | 3.3%

LProperty Taxes by Governmental Activities’ Programs (to the nearest 100 dollars)

L 2013 2014 | Change
General government $| 7rrion| 7718001 708
Public safety 320,700 | 320300 10D

| Rowadds and dridges G20.800 | 640,600 | 19,860
Public health 8,600 8,600 | -
County development al, i 61,3001 200
Liability and insurance 206,200 | 253,700 ] 47,500
Retirement and fica 677,300 | 687,200, 9,900
Public welfare 42,000 42,000 E -

| Total $ | 2,768,200 | 2,786,000 | 77,800

Note that this display reports the gemeral corporate levy that is directed to the Genera! Fund as Geperal
EVVErRment.
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Menard County, lllinois
Management Discussion and Analysis — continued

The table that follows presents a comparison of the costs of the County’s governmental activities as well as each
activity's met cost {costs less charges for services, operating grants and contributions, and capital grants
contributions). The net cost indicates the financial burden placed on the County’s taxpayers by each activity.

Cost and Net Cost Comparison of Gevernmental Activities

in thousandy of dollars)
- ( f dollars) l
Total cost Net cost
General government §| 1,240 | 1,272 §| 836 908
Public Safety 2,522 | 2,527 1,814 | 1,786
ﬂan:ﬁ and bridges 1,853 | 1,582 716 | 1,067 | |
Public health 619 | 296 118 | 119
Judiciary and court 603 | 602 43 | 13
County development 75 74 20 23
Liahbility and insurance 77| 246 77| 241
Retirement and fica ool | 622 600 | 622
Public welfare 84 115 38 64
Interest on long-term debt - - - -
| Total S| 7673 | 7336 | | § | 4362|4943

Greneral government costs are incurred for the operation of certain offices and departments located in the County
courthouse and are associated with the financial, administrative, property assessing, property lax extending and
collection, document recording, election, and other general functions, Public safety costs are those associated
with the County Sheriff’s Department and operation of the County jail complex. Also included are the costs
associated with services provided by the County’s for emergency medical services including that department’s
insurance costs and retirement costs, and the costs of providing animal control services. The County
commenced providing emergency medical services in October 2005.

Roads and Bridges are the costs of operating the County’s Highway Department. The County utilizes several
funds to account for the Highway Department’s activitiecs. The County realized a capital contribution of
$1,813.000 in 2012 for the completion of a portion of the capital safety improvements to the Athens blacktop
and two bridges. This, primarily, accounts for the increase in the net cost of goveramental activities from 2013,

Public Health costs are the costs of operating the Menard County Health Department’s programs including its
administration of the tuberculosis program.

Judiciary and Court costs are those associated with operating the Circuit Clerk's Office. the State's Attorney
(Jffice, the Probation Department and the County s courts.

County Development costs consist of certain costs pertaining to cooperative extension education, development
of a countywide geographic information system, and certain economic development costs.

Liability and Insurance costs represent the County’s participation in the flfinois Counties Risk Management

Trust for protection commonly associated with property, casualty, and workmen compensation protection as it
pertains to the County’s governmental activities. Also included are certain unemployment compensation costs
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Menard Conunty, Hiinois
Management Discussion and Analysis — continned

and the excess healthcare costs for the Self faswrance Fund. The reported incrcase from 2013 to 2014 reflects
the favorable resulls dunng 2013 and only one month of aperation of the Self fnswrance Fund. This activily can
include costs incurred and not covered by insutance.

Retirement and FICA cosls consist of the County®s required contribution to the fflinnis Municipal Retirement
Fund and FICA costs for employees involved with the County’s governmenial gofivities ' programs,

Public Welfare costs relate to providing general assistance and emergeney relicl, and senior mansport van
servicey W the County’s citizens.

Interest on long-term debi is the annual interest costs associated with the County's general obligation debt
obligations.

Basiness-type Activities
Rusiness-1ype activities decreased the County’s net assels $15,000 for the year ended November 30, 2014
These same aclivities provided a $147,000 increase in net assets for 2013, The nursing home bas cxperienced

reduced census {resident days) during the last two vears.

Sunny Acres Nursing Home and Countryside Estates of the County. The following chart provides a
comparison of net revenues for 2013 and 2014,

{to the nearvest thouyand)

| 2013 -Jr—~ 2014 Change
Private pay 3| 2,395,800 | 8| 2,383,800 | 8 | (12,000)
Medicare 2,384,900 | | 2673400 | (311.500)
Medicaid | 14,761,908 | 1,783,600 24,700 |
Medicaid Supplemeniary - 84,300 a4, 300
Quirer 82,600 58,300 (24,300)
Medicaid contribution (176,260) (163,000) 7,200
Total 5 | 6,455,000 | $ | 6,220,400 | § | (234,600) |

Operaling expenses decreased $73.700 from 2013 to 2014.

The following chart provides a eomparison of Sunny Acres Nursing Home’s resident days for 2013
and 2014,

- (resident days)

2013 2014 | | Change |
Private pay ___ 12,956 | | 13,113 157
Medicare and other 4,287 3,801 {496) |
Medicaid 14,104 | | 13,648 {456)
Total | 34357] | 30.562] | (795)
Annual capacity | | 38,690 | | 38,690 -
Porcent vecupled 81.05% | | 78.99% | | (8.77)%
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Menard County, Illinois
Management Discussion and Analysis — continued

The assets of the Intergovernmental Transfer Fund that were derived from administrative allowances
carned for administering an alternate Medicaid reimbursement methodology for the State of Illinois
Department of Healthcare and Family Services were transferred to the Sunny Acres Nursing Home
Fund in late 2006 because the intergovernmental agreement was terminated by the Department on
September 30, 2006. Administration of the alternate Medicaid reimbursement methodology became a
required activity of Sunny Acres Nursing Home on November 1, 2006. The net assets transferred were
segregated within the Sunny Acres Nursing Home Fund and have been reserved for capital purposes
by the Menard County Board of Commissioners. The commissioners designated that future increases
in the net assets of the Sunny Acres Nursing Home Fund derived from administering the alternate
Medicaid reimbursement methodology will be reserved as a capital reserve equity component of the
Sunny Acres Nursing Home Fund and designated for future capital needs. The alternate Medicaid
reimbursement methodology process was discontinued on September 30, 2009. The commissioners
have indicated that the portion of future Medicaid reimbursements that effectively represents the
administrative allowances (Medicaid supplementary) earned and collected through the alternate
reimbursement process will be designated as capital reserve.

Countryside Estates of the County, the County’s independent living facility, operated profitably for 2013 and
2014 because of consistent high occupancy.

The following table provides a summary comparison of the County’s business-type activities results for 2013
and 2014,

Business-type activities resufts

{(in thousands of dollars) —
Operations Cupital Reserve | | Countryside Estates
-ompe : Component _of the County Fund Total
2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2043 | 2014 |
= |
Net revenue 5| 6048 | 5,807 |8 - -/ 8 407 414 5| 6,455 | 6,221
Contributions 10 g - - - - 10 9
Interest income 10 8 4 6 2 I 16 15
Expenses 5,904 | 5,787 I - 369 413 6,274 | 6,200
Transfers, net 72) | (477} 72 379 Bl 38 (60} ﬂ !’£
Change in net| S| 92| (440) | S 75| 385 (20) 40| || H7| (19
position :

Component Unity
The Menard County 911 System’s net position decreased from $471,000 to $406,000 during the year, Net
position was $795,000 in 2010. The net position is meant to be accumulated for financing future capital asset
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Menard County, filinois
Management Discussion and Analysis — continued

and infrastructure needs. Mo capital assets were placed in service during 2014, 911 services for the County
began in 2007,

The public’s discontinuing use of land based telephone lines is hampering the system’s ability to maintain
revenues, A recenl Ilinois Atlomey General™s opinion suggesis that the sponsodng units of local government
for 311 syslems are fiscally responsible for such systems.

Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds

We noted earlier lhat the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonsirate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements,

Governmenigf Funds

The focus of the Cownty’s governmenta! funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outftows, and
balances of spondable resources. This information s useful in assessing the County’s financing requirements.
In particular, wnreserved fund balances may serve as a leading indicator of & government’s nef resources
available fur spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At the end of the cureit fiscal year, the County’s goversmenial furds reporied combined ending fund balances
of $6,084,000. Of this amount, $16,000 is in non-spendable form; nothing is committed for fumre spending;
$4,352,000 is restricted and assigned for future specific purposces such as roads and brdges, public safety,
retirement costs, and insurance and iiability costs. The remaining amount, $1,716,000, the unassigned amount
of fund balance of the County’s General Fund, {s available for funding future general operations and
otligations.

The General Faad is the County™s principal operating fund and is used to account for general operations. The
fund balance of the General Fund at November 30, 2014 was $1,732,000 wilh 316,000 in non-spendable form.

The Liabitity and Insurance Fund is used to account for the anmual property x for the payment of the cosls
associated with the our govermmental activities’ property and casually risk management activities including
workman’s compensation; and self insured unemplayment compensation cogts, The fund balance of this fand
increased $7,500 to $465,000 in 2014.

The Emergency Medical Servicex Fund i3 used to account for the revenues and all of the costs of providing
amergency medical services i the County. It had a Fund balance of $326,000 at November 30, 2014, We have
improved the fAnancial viability of this vital County service with incrcased propertly wax funding within the
confines of the State’s propery tax limimtion Jaws. However, it remains increasingly obvicus that more tax
funding will be required in the [uture.

The Henlth Department Fund is the resull of “blending” the Menard County Health Department into the
County’s [nancial statements. This fimd®s accumulated defieit, $209.000, was absorbed by the General Fumd
via transfers made during the vear. This silvalion and ils resolution are discussed more fully in the Financicd
Highlights section.

The County Highway Fued is the Highway Department’s general operaiing fund. It had a fund balance of
$827,000 at November 30, 2014, a $66,000 increase since 2013,

The County Maotor Fuel Tax Fupd had a Tund balance of $597,000 at November 30, 2014, a $12,000 increase
sinee 2013, The fund balance for this fund is resiricted for future road and bridge project and maiitenance
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Menard Connty, fHlinoiy
Muanagement Discussion and Analysiy — continged

spending in accordance with project budgets approved the County Boand of Commissioners and the Iltinois
Drepariment of Transporation.

The remaining mermajor gevermmental funds reporied a combined fund balance of §2,137,000 & November
30, 2014, a decrease of 3481 000 since 2013, ATl of this decrease is attributabie to costs incurred for
improvements made to the County courthouse and the purchase of property to house the County’s Emergency
Medical Services operation, a total outllow of $34 1,000, including 3185,000 for the EMS property.

Proprictary Fands

The County's propriciary fiund financiel sigtements provide the same type of information found in the
goverrment-wide financial statements, but in more detail. Proprietary funds consist of both erterprise and
internad service funds, Our enterprise funds are essentially our Ausiness-ivpe actfvities. Our only internal
service fund was the Self fesvrance Fund which is included in our governmeniaf aofivities,

The enterprise fuude®’ unrestricted ner gssess at November 30, 2014 were $2,218,000 as compared to
$2,150,000 at November 30, 2013, Factors concerming the finances of these fimds are discussed in the buriness-

type aotfvities section of this dlsctusion and aralysis,

The invernal service fand, (he Self Fsurapce Fund, was discontinued early in the year, the accumulated deficii
at December 31, 2013, 540,400 was effectively ahsorbed by the (rewneraf Fund via a transfer.

Fiduciury Frrls

There wiere no significant changes in the operalions of the fiduciory funds during (he year ended November 50,
2014,

Muajor funds® budgetary highlights

The General Fund hudgeted Tor a deerease in the fund balance of $344,000 [or the year cnded November 30,
2014, The actual fund balance decrease for the year was $254,000.

Revisions {individual line changes) to the coginal budgel during the year were minimal and nominal. Budgeted
revenues did not change and of course fotal budgeted expenditures and transfors out remained the same during
the vear.

Actual revenues were 337,000 more than budeeted revenues. Actual expenditures were §127,000 less than
budgeted amounts. Actual net transfers out, wers $74,000; more than what was budgeted.

‘The Liability and Insurance Fund's fund balance increased $8,000. We budgeted for a $23,000 decrcase.

The Emerpency Medical Services Fund's fund balance decreased $8.000. Wo budpoted 2 deercagse of
$161,000.

The Health Department Fund's fund balance decreased $106,000 before the iransfer in Fom the Generad Fimd,
$209,000; the budgeled decrease was $39,000.

The Highway Fuad's lund balance increased $66,000. A $478,000 deciease was budpeted.

The County Motor Fuel Tux Fund’s fund balance increesed $12,000. A $167,000 decrcase was budgeted.
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Menard County, Hlinois
Management Discussion and Analysis — continued

The actual results for the County’s nonmajor governmental funds were consistent with the County’s Board of
Commissioners and managements’ expectations documented in the County’s annual budget for the fiscal year
ended November 30, 2014, A few funds® actual expenditures exceeded budgeted amounts. These funds and the
excess amounts are listed in Note 2 to the basic financial statements.

A management budget is prepared each year for the twa enterprise funds that comprise the County’s husiness-
type activities. The County Board of Commissioners’ and management’s expectations for Sunny Acres Nursing
Home and Countryside Estates of the County results of operations are always greater than what is documented in
the management budgets for those operations.

Capital Asset and Long-Term Debt
Capital Assets
At November 30, 2014 the County had invested $14,038,000 in a broad range of capital assets including land,
buildings and improvements, equipment vehicles, infrastructure (roads and bridges) and construction in
progress,

The following table provides a comparison of the County’s capital assets at November 30, 2013 and 2014,

(net of depreciation in thousands of dollars)

Gaovernmenial Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2013 | 2004 2013 | 2014 2013 | 2014
Land $| 04| 3348 - - |51 304 334
Construction in progress 152 278 - - 452 278
Buildings and improvements 859 | 1,211 2,481 | 2,315 3,340 | 3,526
Equipment | M6| 117 253 | 246 399 | 363
Vehicles 221|304 - - 221 | 304
Roads 6,165 | 6,016 . - 6,165 | 6,016 |
| Bridges 3,270 | 3,216 - > 3,270 | 3,217
[ Total S [ 11,017 | 11,477 | S | 2.734 | 2,561 | 5 | 13,851 | 14,038

This year’s major capital assets additions included-

v' Courthouse Improvements, primarily roof and gutters, $356,000.

v Property purchased for future location of EMS operations, $185,000.
v' Public safety vehicles and equipment $181,000

v Sunny Acres improvements and equipment, $111,000
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Menard County, Illinois
Marnagement Discussion and Analysis — confinued

The table that follows provides a comparison of depreciation expense by County programs for 203 and 2074

{to the negrest one handred dollars)

2013 2014 Clrange
Governmental activities o
General governmert ¥ 89,300 | 89,800 | & Jih
Public safety 88,200 | 92,360 4,100 .
Rouds and bridges P | 282,000 | 273,500 {8,300}
Public health 12900 | 11080 {1,900 |
Judiciary und court 32,000 | 34,006 2500
i Public welfare 11,408 6,808 (4,000}
Total governmental activities 515800 F Jor. 500 {830t}
_ _ |
Business-tvpe activities l
Sumny Acres Nursing Home TRE.008 | 202,000 1m0
Countryside Extiafes af the Couniy 92,360 | 94800 | . 2,50
Total Business-tvpe activitics " 780,300 | 296,800 | | 16.500
Toral government-wide $ | 796,100 | 804,300 | 5| 8,200

Lowg-Term Debt

At the end of the year, te County’s long-term debt consisted solely of one installment contracts [or public
safery equipment of S50.000 for our governmenta! activities. Wo horowed §100,000 throush the Ilinois
Finance Autherity in 2007 to assist us in purchasing a replacement ambulance for our fleet. The acquisition cost
was $138,000 and we owed $50,000 on this obligation at the end of the year.

Employee Retivement Bencfi Plans

The County sponsors three defined benefit pension plans [or County employees through the [linois Municipai
Retirement Fund (IMRF). IMRF is an agent multiple employer pension plan that acls 35 a commeon investment
and administrative agent for local governments and school districts in Hlinois. Detailed information and dara for
the County’s pension plans are provided in the notes to the basic finaneiol stutements and in the required

supplementary information section of this annual financtal reporl. The nofes also include a discussion of the
deferred compensation plans the County sponsors for its employees.

The County docs not contribute to the deferred compensation plans.
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Meaard County, Hlineis
Munragement Discussion und Analysis — continued

@

*

Economic Factors and 2015

We continue to remain quite aware of the overarching nature of the ongoing State of lilinois” “fiscal
crisis’ and the potential for its ulimate resololiom 1o negatively impact the [utore financial resulls of
several of our individual funds including but not limited to our Gereral Fund, the Health Depariment
Fund, Sunmy dcres Nwrsing Home Fund, and certain Highvweay Department Funds, Stale shared income
maxes account for approximately 23% of the General Fund 's revenues and salary reimbursements from
the Siate of Ilmeis provide soother 8%, We are also cognizant of the impact o us of the ongoing “»era
interest rate” policies of the Federal Reserve on our interest eamings and the ability to accwmulale
adequate reserves for funding fumre capital asscts necds for our governmental activifies, Wo are
grateful and appreciative for the ongoing State of illincis funding through the [llinois Department of
Transportation of lhe majority of the construction costs of our major road and bridge replacement
projects.

As a consequence of the Slate of [linois’ “fiscal crisis”, we cxpect o continuc having a concentration of
credit wilh the State of Illinois periodically during 2015 and subsequent yeurs while the stale strugstes
wilh and resolve ils ongoing cash fow problems. This condition, al times, slows down the flow of cash
to fund our consistemt and recurring costs of opermtions. A similar condition, at the national level,
specifically, cemam Medicare claims of our nursing home operaltion, evolved during 2013 and is
continuing into 2015. This slow down and resulting concentration of credit with both the State of
Hincis and Medicare negalively impacls the cash Aows of several funds including the General rimd,
the Health Department Fund, and the Sunny Acres Nursing Home Fund, Foriunately, we have had
adeqoale reserves Lo carry lhese concentrations of credit; however our ability to replenish the reserves
has been diminishing over the last five to gix vears,

The State of Hlincis has approved rules and procedwres for the quarterly remittonces of a portion of the
annual Medicaid revenues for Sunny Acres Nursing Home. This arrangement was previously approved
by the Federal government. Howcver, it scems that one of the oninlended consequences of the recent
Medicare/Medicaid Alignment Initiative that is mandated to extend managed care to a minimum of 50%
of the State of Illinois long term care papulation is that it was delermined that the Federal government
will et allow funding arrangements that provided for the quarterly remittances. Early in 2012,
management decided to stop accruing the quarerly remitlances as Medicaid revennes. The State of
lilinois Depariment of Healtheare and Family Services hay indicaled that it has every intentton of
[inding a way of continuing the quarterly remittance arrangement. It is this revenic, once collected, thil.
we have relained and designated as capital reserve by lhe Sy dores Nursing Home Fuied,

The Board of Commissioners entered into & management contract with Herirage Operations
Group LLC, ol of Bloomingien, Illinois whereby, effective December 1, 2014, fleritage
commenced managing Summy Acres Nursing Home and Coumiryside Estaies of the County. 1t
i3 the commissioners cxpeetation and hope, among many, that the County’s association with
Heritage will result in operating cost efficlencies and additional revenue via increased
cccupancy and favorable price negolhiations that will oflset the mmmagement fee, expected o be
five percent of net revenues as defined,

The General Fund has advanced $85,000 o the Emergency Medical Services Fumd.  The
Commissianers and other management members continue to moniter and evaluate the collection slatos
of the advance and believe it is adequately eollaleralized. Fulure funding needs for the evenmual
replacement of our fleet of ambulances are also being considercd and cvalualed. Realized Medicatd
revenues for our REmergency Medical Services remained substantialiy less than the cosls of ihose
services and our medivan services were discontinved during 2013,
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Menard County, Hlinois

Muanagement Discussion and Analysis — continued
4 Additional repairs and improvemenis to the courthouse roof are expected to be needed in 2015 and
funds will be needed for the planned removations for the EMS property purchased in 2014, The
Building Improvement Fund *5 budget for 2005 indicates tota] expenditures of $724.000 with a budpeted
transfer [rom the Generdal Fund of 8725,000 (0 cover these extraordinary cosls. We have been founats
during the past decads to be able to fund the costs of extracrdinory improvements to the courthouse
withouf issuing debt and or mereasing real estate taxes; however, the commissioners, realize that to use
roughly forty one percent of the County’s general liquidity is nol [easible and or wise. Some [orm of
debt issuance most likely will have W occur if the budgeted costs come to fuition.  Our ability to fund
such costs from operations” results has been greatly diminished during the last decade as a consequence
of the continued low money markel rate ettvironment and an inadequate growth rate for income tax
revenugs shared with us by the Stote of 1llinois.

Reguests for Informuation
The County’s annual financial report is designed o provide our citizens, inveslors and crediiors with Lhe general

averview of the Counry’s finaoces. Il vou have guestions about this report or need additional information,
please contact the Menard County Treaswrer's Office at the Counry Courthouse.
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STATEMINT OF FINANCIAL I'OSITHON

ASSETS
Lazh
Certificates of deposit
Accnonie receivahle, net
Taxes receivable, nel
Due from other fandy
Indernal balances
lnventordes
Restricied cash
Restricled cevidficates of deposit
Hestricied accounts receivable
Land
Capital aszets, net

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Acpounts payable
Accrued compensation
Prepaymenis and depogits
Deferred revenue
Due to ather fands
Debt payable within oae year
Deht pavahble aller one vear
Other

TOTAL LIABILITIES

MET POSITION
Invested in cavital assets,
eet of related debi
Restricted for -
Baads and bridoes
Fublic safecy
Judiciary and courl
Liebility and insarance
Reiirement aod fica
Puhblic health
{Other
Unresiricted

TOTAL NECT POSITION

MENARD COUONTY, ILLINOIS

November 30, 2014

Primary (xovernment

Governmenal Iinsnicss-type Crmponent
Activities Activities Tolal Linit

£ 3,869082 E 1,193,710 5,062,792 5 32,348
2,250,000 472,500 2,722 500 200,00
285,550 1247372 1,532,022 54,187
278420 - 278,420 -
130,835 - 180,835 -
(182,930) 182,930 - -
228,973 21,517 250,495 -
- 868,040 568,040 -
- L2560, HD 1. 250LHD -
- 18,625 28,625 -
334,054 - 334,084 -
11,142.211 2,561,164 13,703,375 118,993
18,386,180 7825008 26,213 088 405,528
652,124 35T 1.079.454 -
52,851 207464 200315 -
- 123,668 123 4668 -
38,064 - 354094 -
10,0H10 - 10,000 -
10,0HI0 - 10,000 -
44,H0 - HLA00 -
543,069 718,462 1,561,531 -
11,426,295 2561164 13.987.45% 118,993
2,283.297 - 2,283,297 -
350,074 - as0,074 -
349,471 - 349,471 -
454,251 - 464,051 -
H)1,3035 - 401 395 -
41,452 - 41.452 -
30,362 228,460 2,838,522 -
1.715.814 2.217.822 3,933.636 286,535
_% 17543111 §F 107446 24,650,557 5 405,528

The aceompapying notes are an integral porct of chis financial slateme .
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MEMARD COUNTY, ILLINCIS

RECONCILIATION OF THE CGO¥ERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF FINANCTAL POSTTION

NOVEMBER 30, 2014

Total fund balances - governmental funds ( page 3 £ 6.083.46%

Amounts repurted Tor governmental activities in the statement of netl assels
are difTercut beeausc -

Inventories of rock, sand, gravel, and other materials used
Tor roads and hridees canstruction and maintenance have been 228078
reporied in the statement of net assets and are not reparied
in the funds as financial resources -

Capilal asscts used in governmental sctivities are nof finaneial resonrces
and thercfore are not reported in the funds. These assets consist of -

Land 5 334,084

Consiruclion in progress TTS75

Buildings and improvements 4,007,918

Equipment 2,013,317

Yehicles 1,561,763

Roads 11,163,914

Dridges 4,252,552

Accumulated depreciation {12,134,858)

Total carrying valee of capital assets 11,476,295

Some liakilities are not duc and payabile in 1he eurrent period and
are not reported in the funds. Those liabilities consist of -

Accounts payahle for road and bridge projeels and other net items {195,630)
Long-term debt (50,000)
Net assels of governmenial activities { page 1 ) $ 17,543,011

_———

The accompanying notes arc an integral parl ol 1his schedule.



FEX AR COUNTY, TRLTHOTS

STATEMENT Q¥ BEYHHUES AND EXPENDTTTRES AND CILAMGGES I3 FUND HAEAMNCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

XOVEMBER 3, 2014

Linkility Emerpency {Cnooky
und Medicnl Hanlil Cnunhy XTatne Fucl Lher Toial
eoerol Insurnnce Serrives Ihgprarirend Highwray Tux Gvernmental  Gurermne lal
Funil .. Arnd Fand Fund Tund Funil _ Fumde  _ Femky
REVEWNES
Pruperiy Lazua LI i 3 ) £ I3 TR 5 JIhEC 3 - 5 JalkTUs X - ERRELEL 5 2705033
Pulslic aFrly A3L8A Ry - - Hd 5T - - - - 484,077
Fidread and Stncr: aymests 1, 388927 - 17,540 3 4nd 24,307 300,605 §80,523 2.125H78
Flnes, fers, forfekores ond licenses 6024 - - Bt S20 - - 141,381 il T35
Chorges for services 141,540 - 46d 678 5565 333306 - [ES A H1 TAAT, 295
Hher 17,788 . w0 14,122 - 19,201 23,073
Interesl 15171 . - a5 4111 Al L) L3, 84
Tl reven s 2,743,074 1537008 1282083 176,138 RS Ftl, kY 1AiH2,120 5171578
EXIEXNLMITURKS
Correnl;
Lietporal prvcrnmeni 1,025 55 - - - - - 1M, 512 1.125.3M
Biehlle safry 1,17E, [0 - 1,137,104 - - - s, 1A 211090
REnads nad biddgrs . - - - Sk 443 370182 43L,943 1,384,570
Fubllz beolth - - - IRT FN - - 1134 251710
Jodleinry and count S01,H40 - - - - - 70,631 575222
Coumty development 5,250 - - - - - LN A [LRRTEEY
Liubility und msurance - 145,125 - - - - - 2406.215
Retircment and Fich - - - - - - 611,333 611853
Moblic ndiinre - - - - g - 114,514 114.314
Dbt service: -
Trincina] retirement - - TikAIIE - - - - LAl
Tnierest nad fiscol charges - - - - - - - -
Capdtal olayy Lr] - .. lamsss - A 405 - G060 B, 422
Tatal cxpen ditnres 2,753,083 246,225 _ Lapeasd 2H2.544 SISE XL AL 221,510 Trdg 454
EXCERS REYENUES OYER
[UNDER) EXPENDITEIRTS (L0358 IAER (ANt [ 11k 5458 &7 11,335 (535390 _ [5M.ETE)
OTLECR FINANCING SOURCES
(US1EY
{ipcrachg tenmefera kn 166,338 - - 205,024 - - Tirta, (1060 241,182
COperntlag trnesfers (naoi) [d14,215] = - - - - [11 1,535 {S11363]
Tniol other {muncing sources and uses [243,567) - - J0H. 414 - - 54, it 12,500
NET CNANGES I¥ FUXD BALANCES (334,176 41 [7,551) THZ 42U 5T 1535 (30,728, {55527
TUMDE BALANCES - BEGIMNIMG _ LEA.104 457471 A5 424 LLFE ]| Tl AR FR5A71 1,607,303 LN
FUND BALANCES - FIDEMG _5_1,751.95% LI s i) X 115 K8K 3 - L1t 5 504807 3 1,I36575 5 6033d6%

The accompooyimg notes ore on integrad pact nf this mandiol stofement
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MENARD COUNTY, ITLINOIS

RECOMCILIATION OF THE CHANGES OF FTIND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FTNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTTVITTES

NOYEMBER 30, 2014

Mel changes in funds balances - tolal governowental fonds ( page 5 ) 5 (535.27TT)

Amourts repored Tor governmental activities io 1he slatement ol activities
are differint because -

The Statement of Revenues and Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balunces inclodes the
the transfer to the Self Tnsurance Fund feam the General Fund to eleminate that Fund's 45344
deficit at Novembher 30, 24113 which was included in the Stotement o Activities
at November 30, 201 3. (See note 16)

Prelst pracecds are reporwed as fimaneng sourees in governmental Tunds and thues
contrubute to the change in fund halance. In the slatement of net assets,
bowever, issuing debt increases lnmpg-term liabilities and dnes not affect the
statement of activities. Similarly. repayment of debt principal is an expenditore
o the governmental funds bot reduces the liahility in the statement of net assets,
(See Mote T)

Repayments:
Insaliment contracs for LAMS equipment purchises 10,000

Clapital outlays are reporied as expenditures in guyernmental funds. However
in the statement of activities, the eost of the capital assem is allocated over their
estimated wseful lives as depreciztion sxpense,
(See Nog: 5)

Capital ontlays S 866422
Lrepreciatiom expensc (307.575)
Excess of depreciation expense over capital notlay 358047

Some cosls do not require the pse of cuvrent financial resonrces
and are nol reporied as expenditures in the fund financial starements
but must be included in the government-wide financial statements

A5 CXpenses -
Increase in inventories of rock, sand, and gravel 4.768
Change In net asseis of governmental activities { page 2) 5 (13618)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule,
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MET M'ESITION
Met tnrvesimicnt in cnpital asacts
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TOTAL HET POSITION

MENART COUNTY, ILLITNS

FROTRITTARY FIIND5R

STATEMENT O KET I'USLITION

HOVEKIEREE 30, 2014
Infernal
Interprise I'unds i ]T"lmd__
Suooy Avres Mursing Home Fund Ciunfrysile Tatal Helf
Orpierationg Capital Resecve Hulales af the Enterprise ImsueRnmee
CiijHnent Cingpotent Tailal Cuvuoly Fond L'uods Fund
5 ST ¥ - ¥ 5. TE 5 LSBT 3 L19a ] 44,59
TS0 - 3T EO0 125000 AFL800 -
1,245,705 141% L2718 12 1147572
T THJ,00M 1R, 76 - R4, TG
T8, {MI - THAHIO 1,517 TLSIT -
- 65,040 LRI - HEH D -
1,250,H10 1250000 - 1,25ILA101 -
13,525 - LH,425 - %625
1,940 - 1,0dU - 1,541
1130 303,450 &, 4K, TS T3, T S, 26H A5 dd 301
1,534,401 - ¥,584,101 1,627063 1.561,1464 -
3725407 13113.450 fLrIg ASY 1L5M, 757 A dd,5tHI
31 A1 - TR 15171 S, i1
TILS1T - ThELT - TEIT
MTAhd - T A4 - 20T, dad
TIT75R - 117,758 5,914 173,664
- L1040 1,90 - 1.9l -
11] 1475 1,7 - 1,74 459
G9T, 801 Ja15 01,116 TL.MH1 T |98 . A4 530
1,544,101 . 1,534,101 1,027 03 RN -
15,625 1,149 835 134 A0 - IA1%4460 -
1,465,181 - 1,465,150 752,11 1,20 T,RE -
A 3027085 5 1,200,835 L 5,3207.741 5 1,77 TUS 3 TIUT. 446 5 -

The accompunying nubes are on integral paet of thia oancial sateroent,
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS

STATEMINT OF RLYENUES, EXFEMSES,
AND CHANGES IN FUOND NET FOSITION
FROFEIETARY FLINDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOYEMBER 20, 2014

Enlermal
Enterprise Fouds Serwice 'unil
Snnay Acres Murshup Hooe Fund Cliruoicyxide "Ttul Hell
Dperations Capltal Reserve Eslule uf ihe Enlecprise Inzarmencn
Componest Compnneni Taal oty Funil Fundy Fund
NET OPERATING REVENIES § SRR 5 - 5 5,406,402 b 413,594 5 62I0,59% 5 1%
DPERATING EXPENSES
Halarber and wages 2740 1TH - AR CRT L 146,744 1,995 965 -
Contractoal lnlmr - - - - - -
Ryfiremynt costy 85T - 440,857 15,598 56,255 -
Meslicn] nml nursing supplics 317,797 - 517,797 - 7,797 -
Tood aod dietary supplica 166,040 - ELLRIEL 34057 15,703 -
Thrrapy coots 185,662 - THSE k2 - TA% 061 -
Ingurance and vk inavagestealt IE6 FEY - 06,960 41406 408,575 -
Deprreciatinn PPN PR - 102,013 04,825 I9E B4l -
1 lilities 150,011 - 150021 19,549 175,611 -
Frofessional lves 65,447 s A3UHT .75 08737 -
iaimrenance and repaie LA ] - 9,779 17,913 1176501 -
Provider paricipalien fee ] - 58511 - EL b -
Hunzgekeeping aod nundry 55,193 - 55,193 L3270 56,463
Advertising 16,630 - 164650 - 16,6350 -
Proviginn for DBad debis a,a0n - RAHI - AILAIGIN -
Administraliyn ang olfcr costs 133,907 - 1353 4007 10,319 144,224 12480
Total operating cxpenses 5, T S} S 5,797,500 di 1085 5,200,485 1,280
UFERATING INCUME [ LOSES) 10,841 iS40 19,302 hl1 19013 4,939
MON-CUERATING REYENUEY {EXPENSLES)
Contlbulions Rk - 1,035 - 0,055 n
Tnleresi income 3451 4, [23 14,574 1,447 164K ] 4
Interest cxpense - - - - - -
Won-operating revenss [eojkenses) 17486 4,023 234009 1487 150108 4
MNET INCOME [LOS5) 37,328 5503 41,111 TAHH 45008 4,943
TRANSIERS IN - 379315 AT9A15 - 319,515 J0.401
TRANSVEILS 1N (OL71) [4T T, 4300 - (477, 438) 35,121 (435,315 -
NMET TRANSFERS [N {OLIT) {477.430) 379,545 g 11 N2 Lan Ay Al 401
CHANGE IN HET POSITION (R, NINtED 344,898 35210 A0210 (14,991 45,344
TOTAL KET POSITION - TEGINNING Sode8,004 1,014 937 5,381 951 1,739 456 TLI3. 437 (45,544
TOTAL KET FOSITIOM - ENTNG B XTI 5 4,233,435 5 551774 ] 1,770,705 5 07 ddb H -

The accompanyivg nites arve ab integral par of this Bosogal statement.



Interanl
S —— L D e fervice Tond
Soiny Arers Kueslnp Hooe Fioid Canntevside “Toisl el
Dperativnl Cayitil Repeeve Fatudes wf dhe Enlerpre Inawrunce
Compenent Compuoanent Totnl Coundy Fund  _ Fupds | _Tood__
CASH FLAYWS FROM DPERATING ALTIVITIES
Met cash received Mor ressdent care nod health core 5  o,M%d00 5 - 5 6.01ud0 k] d12 503 § 6451 4% - 41,1154
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CASH FLOWS FROM CAFITAL AND KELA'TEDN
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Copitol seset sequlsibinus 4L35,533) - IIL5,533) {12,B53) (136,335} -
Crlilicxles of dipesil malurilies Jad,000 L= (] L2400,y o 15411, 0 -
CertiHeates of depaslc purchased AT, 50 [1,250,000) ¢ 1,507,500 (L25000) {1,732, 500} -
Aalyance du operalives conpenzol and or other Munds . dLE, ) IRLER-UIN] - (1440040 -
Resudendy' propaymencs, dveraayisciis, ol A¢janslis - - - [250] eIy -
Mer cash prnrided {used) hy capitd and erdoced
linelap gorlvilig: {630, d6H JI04, 685 [TL5 154} §d%, 0821 [0, k3, _ _ 2
CZASTT FLOWS FROY TRYKSTING ASTIVITERS
Lidvrest received . 9.49_-!_ 4,711 1420407 1441 1508 q
Mel caal pruyided fusedp by iovesting uctivilies 0,494 £M3 14,417 [N 15 AK7 4
KET INCREASE (DECATASE) TN CASIT AND
CASH EQILYALES LY {101,201 {9,077 [N, A3 EL N [157, 131} 17,524
CAST AND CAST EQUIYALENTS -FEGIMNMNING OF YEAR LTINS TEE,I12 L0138 00% £%a,K17 1,114.351 17,070
CASH ANINCASH EOQUIYALKNTS - END OF YEAR 3 S#B T4 3 EEOE 5 L 416,500 % LLEN ] £ 100,75 < 44,30y
RON-CASH CAPTT AT, AN FINATRCING ACTIVITIES -—
Capita] naset nequisiting locduded o nccounts poyshie st 11-30-£3 5 14,322 5 - 5 14322 5 - 5 14322 T -
Capilal ;isred ooyuisitios inclsded | nccounds poysbde st 11-30-14 & - 5 - 5 - 13 - 5 - 5 -
Forgiveness of dme te penera] fund amoyne i 01-30-13 duelng 17-30-14 5 - 5 - X - 5 - 3 - 540,41

MER AR COURTY, TLLINCHY
HTETHEMENTOF CASH FLTWS
FROFHIETARY FIINDR

FOR TITE ¥Cak FADID NOYEMDER 30, 204

The sccompowy log optes ore an inicgrad paet of 16z Soancial atatement,
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MEMARD COUNTY, ILLINUCLEE
STATERMENT OF CAsH FLUOWYS
FROFHIFT ARY FUND
TOR TilE YEAR EXUEL iy EMBEH 30. 2014

RECORLCILIATION OF QFEILATIRG LNCORE
TOMET CASIT PROYTDED DY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Internal
Entcrprlse Fands Servlos Kuad
Lwiiny Acrce Muedioe Héanle Fumd Cumidrysile Tuenl Sell
Crperations Capital Reserve Extater of the Enierprize Tniocance
Cnuapnient Ciniupaneit “Inial Loy Find FiLuids Wil
OTCRATOG INCOME {LOSS) 1 19,842 3 (241 1 14302 £ Al ERER L ] = 4413
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE DI'ERATING INCOME [LO5S)
T KET CARH PROFTRED WY OFRRATING ACTIVIVIES
Depreciution 102,023 . 202,023 24,0825 206, 548 -
Provlsion far bed debts Al - (LT - firk N1 -
LIgPeage] doeriays in aitund I reveivihile 123, led - 223,160 [ 1,103y 221066 34,335
{Increuse] decreare in doe [rom other Coonty Fiends L LES}p - [15%) - 1155) -
[Esecrense) Increece s acconnts poyahie 16.k50 30 14,590+ 2,am [%.E7] (22, 230)
{Decrease] imcremae io BMedicaid provider navessment (L0, Ep - [LkALG) - [LkAln) -
[Dmcrense] locrense o ocoroed compenxacing [14.354) - £ 1%,Hid] - {1%,Rid) -
[Rmar g lniiengs 1o @i o ol Loty Fundy - - N S .
Ked cosh provdied by pperoting sctblibe 3 a00.649 3 - 5 qHL 4T 3 DR A3 5 SATaR3 3 1150

The aacnns)unying nedes 20 wo imbepreal parl ol this fiosodol salement
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

NOVEMBER 30, 2014

ASNETS
Cash
Receivables
Duc from other funds
Capital asscts, net
Other

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to road districts
Due to taxing disiricts
De to others
Dhie to other fuonds

Total Babilities

NET POSITION
Held in trust for -
Individuals, organizations, and
other governments

Private-purpose Apcncy
Trust Funds Funds

$ 229,673 5 1,025,822

5,990 97,025

134} 10,931

28,627 -

- 30,000

264,420 1,213,778

907 -

- 537.879

- 551

- 538,052

- 137,296

997 1,213,778

$ 263,423 $ -

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of this {inancial statement.
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINO1S

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDEDIN NOVEMBER 30, 2014

Private-purposc

Trust Funds
ADDITIONS
Fines, fees, and forfeitures ] 53,439
Charges for services
Contributions -
Other -
Intercst 1R
53,619
DEDUCTIONS
County law Lkbrary 3103
Investigations and training -
Operating expenses 15,398
Depreciation 33,151
51,652
Change in net assets L9567
NET ASSETS-BEGINNING 261,456
NET ASSETS-ENDING S 263,423

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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1.

MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the pear ended November 30, 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A,

GENERAL STATEMENT

The accounting and reporting policies of Menard County, lllinois (County) relating to the funds
included in the accompanying basfc firgrcial statements (inaocial siatements) conform to
ac¢ounting principles generally accepfed in the United States of America that are applicable to
statc and local governments. Generally accepied accounting principles for local zovernments
fonclude those principles preseribed hy the Governmental Accounling Standard Board (GASE),
the Amcrican lostitute of Certified Pablic Accountants in its publication, Awdits of State and
Local Governmental Units, and certun publications of the Finnocial Aceounting Standards
Board. As allowed in Section PE0 of GASH’s Codification of (overnmental Accounting and
Financial Reporting Standards, the County has elected noi to apply Financial Accounting
Standards Board statements and inferpretations, Accounting Principles Board opinions, and
accountding research bulleling of 1the Commiltee of Accounting Procedure issued after November
30, 198,

FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

The financial reporting entity consists of (a} the primary government, (h) organizations lor
which the primary government is financially accountable, and (¢} orpanizations for which the
natarc and sipnificance of their relationship with the primary zovernment are such that
¢xclusion would cause the reporting entity's inancial statements to be misleading or incomplete,

The County™s Oinancial statements include the acconnts of all County operations. The eriteria for
including organizations as componcnt units within the County's reparting entity, as set forth in
Scction 2100 of GASB's Codification of Goveramental Accounting and Financial Reporiing
Stampdards, include whether:

- the organization is legally scparate {can sue and he sped in their own name)

- the County holds the corporate powers of the organization

+ the Countly appoinis a voting majority of the organization's hoard

- the County is able to impese its will on the ampanication

- Lhe organization has the potential to impose & inancial benelit/burden on the
Coonty

- there is iscal dependency by the organization on 1he County

Three entities have heen considered for inclusion in the Couwnty’s finaacial staiements, An
overview of each entily and the consideration of financial accountbility are discussed below,
Management belicves that only one of the County’s component units, the Menard Cousnty 117
Systern shonld be included in the County’s financial stuiements as a diseretely presented
component unit. A "discrete presentation” displays the component wnil's financial information
in a scparate colamn(s} apart from the primary government. The account balances and
transactions of the other component unil, the Merard Cownty Health Department have been
blended into the County’s financial statements. “Blending” is a proeess by which the account
balances and trunsactions of the component unit are reported in 2 manner similar to the account
balances and transactions of the primary government entity.
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIY
Notes to Basic Financial Statemenis - Continyued

Menard Coanty 811 Systemn- Besidents of Menard County established the County’s emcrgency
telephone system in November 2002 when a referendum was approved authorizing ihe Menard
County Ooard of Commissioners (o impose a 33.25 monthly sureharge on the billed subscribers
of 911 network conncction telecommunications carricrs who provide such services to their
Menard Comnty custnmers. The County has established the Menard Conunty Emergency
Teleplione Systems Board, The Board's power and duties have been delined by county ordinance
and include planning the 911 sysfem; coordinating, supervising, and implementation; liscal
responsihililies; amd personnel decision-making. The [inancial statcments of the Merard Conrrty
917 Spstern arc incloded in the County’s Mnancial statements becavse of the degree of plysical
control exercised by the County; the Menard County Board of Commissioners appoints all of the
Hoard’s members. Tt is presented as a “discreiely presented component wnit™ v emphasize that
it is # component unit legally scparate from the County. Separate andited financial statements
arc not prepared.

Menard Connty Health Depariment- The account balances and transactions of the Menard Connty
Health Department are included in the County’s f[nancial statements because it is [Oscally
dependent on the County, Separate wudited foancial statements arc not prepared.

Logan-Musop-Menard Edwcational Service Repion- the cost of operating the educational service
region is gencrally apportioned among the three counties, Logan, Mason, and Mcnard bascd on
each counfy’s apgrepate equanlized assesscd valnation uged for property tax levies. Separale
audited linancial statements are on file with the Menard County Clerk. Operating surplases and
deficitn partially acerue t0 Menard County; however, because Logan Counily provides more than
filty percent of the Region's support, the accounts of the Region are not included in Menard
County's Onancial stements.

The County’s Board of Commissioners appoints the board members of several organizaiions in
the Counfy. These organizations do not have a inancial henefit/burden relationship with the
County and arc not required to be included in the County’s financial statements.

C. DASIS OF PRESENTATION

The government-wide financial siatements (the stmrement of financial pasition and the statement of
activities) report (inancial information on all of the County®s activitics, except for fiduciary
activities. Eliminations have been made (0 efiminate the double counting of certuin internaf
transactions for reimbursements of insurance costs and fuel costs, Governmental activities, which
are primarily supporfcd by Mxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange
transaclions, are scparately reported from business-type activities, which are [inaneed in whole or
in puri by fecs ebarged to external parties.

The sttement of financial pasition presents the County’s assets and liahilities with {he differcnce
between the two reported as nct position in three distinet categories -

Trvested in capital assets, net of reluted debt — consists of capital assets, net of nccumulaied
depreciation and reduced hy outstanding balances for bonds and other debt attributable w the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets,

Restricted net positions — result from limitations impased on their use either through enahling
legislation adopted by the County or through cxtermal restrictions imposed hy creditors,
grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments,
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS
Notex to Basic Financial Statemmenis - Continied

Unrestricted nef position — i3 the net position that remains afler the Counéy's net position has
been classilied between invested in capital assets net of related debt and restricted net position.

Ii is the County's policy to lirst apply restricted resources when an expensc is incurred for
purpases for which hoth restricled and uorestricted net assets are available.

The statemert of wctivities demonsirates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
program are offsct by program revenues.  Divect expenses are those that are ¢learly identiliable
with a specific program,. Program revenues consists of 1) fees, fines, and charges paid by the
recipients of goods and services offered hy the programs and 2) granG and contributions that are
restricted 1o meefing the operational or capital requircments of a particolar program. Revenues
that are not classified as program reveoues, including all mxces, are presented as gencral
FEVEIIIeS,

The County segregates transactions related to certain functions or aclivities in separate funds in
order to aid Omancial management and (v demonstrate legal compliance. The fund financial
stafementy provide information about these funds, including its fiduciary funds and bicnded
component units, Separute fund linancial statements are provided for each fund category -
governmental, praprictary, and fiducliory. The emphasis on fund financial statements is on major
governmental and proprictary funds {erferprise and internal service) each displayed in a separate
column. All remaining povernmental and proprictary funds are aggrepated and presented in a
gingle ¢colwmn as sor-major fands.

Fiduciary funids are cxcluded from the goversment-wide Iinancial statements becansc those funds’
ussety are held by the County in a trustee or agency capacity for others and therefore cannot be
used to suppori the County’s programs.

Governmentyl fands are thosc funds through which most governmental programs arc linanced.
The mcasurement focus of governmental funds is on the sources, uses and balances of current
fnancial resources. The County has presented the following major governmental funds —

General Fund — This is the County’s main operating fund. This fund is used to account for all
fnancial resources noi accounted for in other funds. All gencral mx revenues and oiher
revenacs that are not restricted by law or contractwal agreement to some other fund are
aceounted for in this fund. General operaling expenditurcs, fixed charges, and capital
improvement eosts not disbursed through other funds are dishursed from the General Fund.

Ligbility and Insurance Fand — This fund is uscd to aceount for the annual tax for the payment of
the governmental acyivities’ property and casnaliy risk managements, including funding of sclf
inaared unemployment compensation costs,

Emergency Medical Services Fund — This fund is used €0 aceount for the operations related to
providing emergency medical services throughout the County, primarily ambulance service.
This includes the levy and collection of the annoal property tax for ambulance service, all of the
public safety sales tax revenues, and the user charges eollected to fund these services,

Health Departmtent Fund — This fund is used to acconnt for all of the financial resources and
cxpenditures for operating the County’s Health Departinent, Revenucs primarily consist of
charges for services provided tbrough the Department’s home health division and publi¢ health
and oiher type grants,
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINGIN
Notes fo Basic Financiol Statements - Continued

County Hiphway Fund — This fund is used to account for the levy and collection of the annual
property tax for the purpoesc of maintaining, and improviag the County’s roads. It is alao used to
accouni for other Muancial resources that are noi resiricted by law or contractosl agrecment o
some other County highway fund.

County Motor Fuel Tax Fund — This fond is used to account for the receipt of moior fuel 1axes
allotted to the County tv be retained and used for the constrnction and maintenanee of State and
County roads and bridges and other projects. All cxpendilores from this fund require the
approval of the Illinvis Deparément of Tramsportation and the County’s Board of
Commissioners,

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of acconnting. The accounting objectives are determinations of nel income,
Minancial position, and cash fMow. All assets and liabilities are included on the Satewment of net
ussets. The County has presented the following major proprietary funds —

Sunery Acres Nursing Horme Furd — This eaterprise fand is used to account for the operations of
the County’s nursing home, Sunny Acres Nursing Home.

Coantryside Estates of the Cosnty Fund — This eaterprise fund s used to accouni for the
operations of the County’s independent living facility, Counrryside Extates of the County.

Nelf Insurance Fund — This imternal service fund wos naed to aceount for all the monetary and
economic aspects of providing group health insurance type benelits to efigible and parlicipating
County employees.

These three Funds are the County®s only preprictary funds, where the intent of the governing
body is that the costs (cxpenses, including depreciation) of providing goods and services 1o the
general public nod, internally, on & continuing basis, be financed or recovered through charges
for thosc goods or services.

Proprietary funds distinguish operaling revenncs and cxpemses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses result from providing services and delivering goods i
connection with the proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operalions. Operating expenses for the
proprietary funds include the cost of personal and contractual services, supplies, depreciation on
capital assets and other costs. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported
as non-gperating revenues and expenscs.

The County uses both agenrcy and private purpose trust funds for it fiduciary activities. Agency
Junds are used to aceount for properiy taxes, fecs, lincs, and other monies collected on the behalf
of other governments, and other entitics and individuals, Privare purpose travt funds arc used to
report all ofher irust arrangements under which priacipal and income benelit other
governments, and individoals. Separate fund financial statementy are provided for ihe fidaciary
Sfunds even though they are excluded from the govermment-wide financial statements.

D. MEASUREMENT FOCUS/BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Measurement focus refers to whatl is being measored; basis of accounting refers to when
revennes and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the Gnancial
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS
Noies to Basic Financial Statementy — Continved

statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the mensurement made, regardless of the
measercment foeus applicd.

The government-wide finuncial stoteprents and fund financial statements for the proprietary funds
are reporied using the economic resources measurement focus and accroal basis of accounting.

The cconomic resources measurement focus means all assets and liabilitics (whether current or
non-current) are included in the balance sheel und the operaling slatements prescnt inercases
(revenoes) and decreases {(expenses) in net position. Under the accruud basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized when carncd and expenses are recognized at the time the liability is
in¢nrred.

Governmenital fundy’ financial statemenis are reported using the currcat financial resowrces
measurement focus and are accounted for vsing the modified accrual basis of xccouniing, Under
the modified basis of accounting revenues arc recognized when susceplible to acerual; ie., when
they become both measurable and available, "Measurable” means the amount of the transaction
¢an be determined and "available” means collectible within the current period or soon ennngh
thereafter 10 be used to pay liabilities of the corrent period. The County considers property
taxes and sales taxes as available if they are collected within 60 days afier year-end.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred,

The Emergency Medical Services Fund, the Mealth Departrment Fund, and ceriain olber
governmental faade repor! wsing (ull accorual basis of accoumnting,

Revenmes susceplible 1o acerual ave properiy laxes, sales (axes, licenses and fees, charges for
scrvice, inferest income and imtergovernmental revenues,  All other governmental fund Grpe
revenues are gencrally recognized when received.

BUDGETS ANTD BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

Budge!t amounts are defermined on a basis consisient with generally accepted accounting
principles for the specilic fund types,

Appropriation balances lapsc at ycar-cnd; consequcatly, the County docs not utilize
cncumbrance accounting, a system by which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitmenis
for the expenditure of resources arc recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable
nppropriation.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The County Treasurer consolidates the cash for most of the governmental funds into two cash
management pools in order to maximize intercst income. Excess cash is invested in certificates of
depusits with original maturities of one year or less with local linancial institutions. Each tund
whose monies are deposited in the pooled accounts has equity therein, This equity is available on
demand and is considered to be “cash equivalents” for finzncial reporting purposes. The two
cash pools are maintaincd within the General Fund und in the County Highway Fund, Inleresi

earncd from the pooled accounts is rctained by these two funmds as an administrative cost
I'ECOYELY.

The County considers cask and cash equivalents in proprictary funds to be ¢ash on hand and
demand deposits. In aduition, becavse the two cash management pools are sulliciently liquid to
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H.

permit the withdrawal of cash at any timc without prior potice or penalry, if any, the funds’
equity in the cash management pools is also considered to be the cquivalent of cash,

INVESTMENTS
Iravextments, if any, are reported at cost, which approximates fair value.
RECEIVABLES

Governmental Activities” Accounts receivable for services provided are reported nct of related
allowanees for doubtful accounts and contractual adjustments for certuin health department and
emergency medical services, Contruelunl adjustments oceur in those situations where the
payment rate from third party payers is less than the rate charged by the County far the
respective scrvices.

Business-type Activities’ accounis receivable Tor services provided arc reported net of reladed
allowances for doubtful accounts and coniractnal adjustments, if any,

Health related service revermes arce rcported at estimated nel realiznhle amownls from
individuals, third -party payers, and others for services rendered,

INVENTORIES

Irvenfories arc accounted for at invoice cost determined hy the first - in first - out meibod. The
purchase method is nsed to account for malerials and supplies, The costs of materials and
gupplies are initially recorded us cxpenscs with the recognition, as inventories, of significant
amounty of unused materials and sapplics on hand at year-cnd.

PREPAID EXPENSES

Prepaid experses are generally for paymenis made in the current year for scrvices or benclity
occurring in a subsequent year and are reporied with other assets.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYARLES

Outstanding balances hetween funds ave eliminated within the goversmental octivities and the
basiness-type uctivities columns for presentation of the government-wide financial statements. Any
residual balances outsmanding between the goversmental activities and 1he business-fype activities
are veported as imtersnd balances.

The putstanding halances between funds arc not eliminated for presentation of the fuad fisrgncial
Matementy where they are included as due from/due to other funds.

RESTRICTED ASSETS

Restricted assets primarily include cash and certificates of deposit that have limilations placed on
their nse through resolution adopted by the County or through cxiernal restriction imposed by
creditors, grantors, or laws, or regulations of other governmeats. It includes resources such as
the designated earnings of the County’s business-type activities derived from past participation in
an alternate Mcdicaid reimbursement methodology with the State of Ilinois Department of
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Henltheare and Family Services,
M. CAPITAIL ASSETS

Capital assety, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure asscts, arc reporicd
in the upplicable governmenfol and basimess-type activities in the goversment-wide finoncial
staterments and in the fund financial statemenis for the proprietary fands,

All capilal assets are valued al historical costs or estimated historical cost if actaal historical cost
iz not availahle. Donated assets are valoed at their fair market value on the date donated.
Bepairs und maietenance are recorded as expenses. Renewals and bedviermenis are capitalized.

Generally, assets capitalized have an original cost of 51 000 or more and an estimated wseful life
of more than three years,

Property, plant, and cquipment and infrastruciure asscts are depreciated using the straight-line
method over the following estimated wseful lives —

Assed E Years
Buildings and improvesenty | 1044
Egquipment . o { 3-2it
Vehicles \ 4-7
Rouds 3
Bridges 7

N. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

In addition 1o labilitics, the balance sheet for the governmcental funds will report a scparatc
seclion for deferred inllows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred
inflow of resourcss, represents an acquisition of net position that applics to a future period(s) and
s0 will not be recognized as an inflow of resources {revenue) until that time. The County has one
type of item that arises only woder a modified mccrual basis of accounting that gualilics for
reporting in this category. Accordingly, unavailable revenuoe (revenue recognition for federal
and statc awards does not occnr nntil the eligible costy attributable to the awards have been
incurred; excess amounts are deferred and are reported in the governmental funds halance
sheet

0. ACCRULD ABSENCES
County employees may accumulate enrned but nnuscd vacation pay henefits. Certain vacation
benefits are incleded in accrned compensation for both the povermmenta!l wnd baviness-type
acrivities.

P. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term debt is reported as linbilitics in the applicable govermmental or businesy-type uctivitios
and preprietary funds’ balance sheet. Bond issuance costs, if any, are deferred and amortized
over the term of the related debt and are included in other assets.
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Debt proceeds, if any, are reported as other financing sources for governmental funds with debt
service funds created and used to account for the servicing of the [ong-term obligations.

(. TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN FUNDS

Legally anthorized transfers are treated as interfund (ransfers and are included in the resulis of
eperations of both governmenial and propriciary fundv.

R FUND BALANCES FOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Effective December 1, 2010, the County and its component units adopied the provisions of
(rovermmenial Accoutiting Standards Board Statement Namber 54, Fund Bolance Reporting and
Governmentel Fund Type Dafinition. The objective of the statement is to cnhanee the usefulness
of fund balance informatom by providing fund balaoce classiflications that can be more
consisiently applied and by clarifying existing governmentol fund type definitions. The County
cvalluated the ose of the speciuf reversie fundy uander the criterin sel forth in statemenl 54 and
determined there was no change needed.

As prescribed by statement 54, governmental funds report fund halance in classifications bascd
primarily on the cxtent to which the County is hound bt honor comstrainls on the specilic
purpose for which amounis in the funds can be spent. Tunid balance for governmental funds
consist of the following

Nouspendable Fund Balance — includes amounts that are (a) not in spendahle form, or (b) legally
or contraciwally required to be maintained intact. The “not in spendable form” criterion
includes assets that are mot cxpected to be converted imto cash anytime soon for example:
inventories, prepaid amounts, and Jong term [oans and advances receivahle,

Restricted Fund Dalance — includes amounts that are resiricted for specilic purposes stipnlated
by exiernal resowrces providers, constitutionally or through enabling legislution. Restrictions
may ellectively be changed or liftcd only with the conseut of resoarce providers.

Commiticd Fund Balance — includes amounis that can only be uscd for the specific purposes
determined by a formal action of the Counly’s hizghest level of decision making authoerity, the
BHoard of County Commissioners. Commitments may be changed or lilted only by the Connty
(aKing 1be same formal action that imposcd the consiraint originally (for example: resclution and
ordinance).

Assigned Fund Balance — includes amounis intended by ithe Coanty for specilic purposes that are
neither resiricied nor committed. Intent is expressed by the Board of Commissioners tn which
the assigned amounis are (0 be wsed for specific purposes. Assiened amounts olso include all
residual amounts in governmental funds (cxcept negative amounts) other than the General Fund
that are not classilied as nonspendable, restricted, or committed.

Enassigned Fund Balance — the residual classification for the General Fund and includes all
amounis not contrined in other classifications, Geovernaerial funds report residual oegative
bhalanees as unassigned funid balance.

In circumstances when an expenditure is made for which amounts are svailable in multiple fund
balance classifications, fund balance is depleted in the arder of restricted, commitied, assigned,
and unassigned.
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v

NET POSITION

Net position represents the dilference between assets and liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources. Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assels, net of accumwlaied
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings wsed for the construction,
acquisition, or improvements of those assels. Restricted net position is lepally restricled by
vulside parties and or the Board of Commissicners for a specilic purpose.

The County first applies resiricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for wihich
both restricted and unrestricied net position is available.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financtal statemcats in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepled in the United Siates of America requires management ¢to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and lizbilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statemenls and the reported amount of revenues
and expenses during the reporling period. A¢tual amouns could dilTer from those estimates.

2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

The County generally followws these procedures in estahlishing its bodget —

1. Im Oectober of each year, the County Hoard of Commissioners develops a proposed operating
budget for the fiscal year commencing the following December 1. The budget includes
proposed expenditurcs and the mcans of inaocing them for virtually all of the County’s
individual funds.

2. A copy of the proposed budget is placed on file with the County Clerk for public inspection,
3. Each vear the budget is adopted by resolution of the County Board of Commissioncrs.

Afler adoption of the budgel, further additional appropriations arc prohibited for appropriated
Funds except in the event of an emergency, Traosfers from vne appropriation of any onc fund to
another npproprintion of ihe samc fund, not affecting the total amoant appropriated, may be
madc at any meeting of the County Board by a vote of the members.

Formal hudgetary integration is employed during the year as a munagement control device.
Appropriation balances lapse at year-end. The following governmental funds had an excesy of
actual expenditures over hudgeied expenditnres for the year ended November 30, 2014,

E _Expenditures
- Lol
Acrual Budget | Fxeesy
Nonmajor Fusds i
Court Services Prnd $| 39533 | 8| 38834 699
Butiding improvement Fund | § | 552023 | 8| 475000 | 77623
Emergeney Relief Fund §| 3051 % o001 8 5i
Sertior Transport Fund S| 45496 8| 3538 i}: S| W0516
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The General Fund’s fund balance components at November 30, 2014 consisted of the following,

Nonspendable | Commitfed | Asnvigmed Unassigied Totafs
Jor
BDise frems other fundy - - - - -
Accounds receivabic 16,144 - -1 -1l 1o, 44
Internal Service Fend - - -1 - -
Major Fand - - -
Avaitable for spending - - - 1,715,814 1, 715814
Tornls 16,144 - - 1,713,814 1,731,958

Y. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Stute statutes authorize the types of invesimenls the County may own and the linancial institubions
eligible to receive Connty deposits, This includes commercial banks, obligations ol ¢he Uniled States
‘Treasury and United States Agencies, obligations of Sates and their political subdivisions, credit union
shares, repurchase agreements subject to cerlain limitations, commercial paper rated within the three
highest classilications by at least two standard ruting services, Metropolitan Investment Fund, and the
Nlineis Funds Investment administered by the Treasurer of the State of Illinois. The County has
approved the County treasurer’s investment policy. It is consistent with requirements of State smatutcs
and strives to minimize the level of inlerest rate risk as well a3 the overall amount of credic risk, Teis the
policy and praetice of the Counly treasurer w invest idle public funds in intcrest beaving accounts with
locnl linancial institutions and the Tlincis Funds, Amounts om deposit with the local financial
institutions in excess of insured limits must be cotirely collateralized with appropriate investment
gecurities, and the collateraliration recorded by the respective financial institetion’s safelteening agenm
for its investments secnrities.

At November 30, 2014, all of the of ihe Couniy and its component onits* bank deposits, were entirely
insured and or collaterslized by sccuritics beld by the pledging financial institotions® safekeeping agenty
in the name of the Connty and or its component unity.

The County had $1,506,674 on deposit with the Ilinois Funds Invesiment Pool at November 30, 2014,
This deposit is not categorized becaunsce it 35 not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book
entry form. The Illinois Andilor General audis the linancial statements for the Illingis Funds’
Investment Ponl and performs other oversight functions,
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4.

ACCOUNTS and TAXES RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable for the County's governmental funds at November 30, 2014 are as follows -

and | Medical Health | Counmty | nonmajor Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Activities
Salary
reimbursements,
| State of Iinois 98,659 - - - - - 98,659
Construction
COSIS,
State of Hllinois - - - - - 50,120 Soaz0
Grants,
State of Hlinois 782 - - 16,533 - - 11,315
Medicare - - 25,902 - - - 25,962
Medicaid - 45,181 - - 45,181
Insurance - - 83,353 - - - 83,353
Individuals - - 53,344 - - - 53,344
| Other 19,283 151,873 - - 1,842 172,998
| Interest 2,813 - - - 329 37 3,179
| Totals 121,537 151,873 207,780 Ih533 329 37,999 544,051
| Less -
Allowance  for
doubiful
| BCCONNIN (56,143) - (75,742) - - - | (131,885)
Allowance  for
confractusl
| adjustments - - | (126,616) - - - (126,616)
“Net 65,394 | 151873 54220 10533 329 51,999 285,550

Medicaid amounts are collected from the State of Illinois and are usually in arrears several months,
For health related services, provided through the County’s governmental activities, payment rates
established by State and Federal legislation and contractual arrangements with other third party
payers have been and are primarily prospective, with the intent of establishing payment rates that will

not change before the period for which they will apply.
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4,

ACCOUNTS and TAXES RECEIVABLE - continued

Accounts receivable for the County’s Business-type activities at November 30, 2014 are as follows —

Sunny Acres Countryside Toral
Nursing Home | Estates of the | Business-type
Fund County Fund Activities

Individuals 357,498 - J57. 498
| Medicare 640,370 | B 640,370
Medicaid 474,560 - 474,560

Insurance 349,812 - J49.812
Interest 1,410 257 1,667

Totals 1,823,650 257 1,823,907

Less -

Allowance for ]

Doubiful

Accounts (447,910) - (447,910)
| Allowance for | L

Contractual

adjustmerts (106,000) - (104,000)

Net 1,275,740 257 1,275,997

For health related services, provided through the County’s business-type activities, payment rates
established by State and Federal legislation and contractual arrangements with other third party
payers have been and are primarily prospective, with the intent of establishing payment rates that will
not change before the period for which they will apply.

Taxes receivable for the County’s governmental activities at November 30, 2014 are as follows -

24

County
Emergency | Motor
Medi Fuel Nonmajor Total
Tax General | Servicey Tax | Governmental | Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Activities
Sales 46,462 20,604 - 2,259 | 169,325
Use 25,481 - - - 25,481
| Income 65,486 - - - 65,486
| Motor fuel - -| 18,128 - 18,128
Totaly 137,429 120,604 | 18,128 2,259 2?3,4‘2&
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Depreciation expense for the governmental activities’ functions was as follows -

General government 5| 89,828
Public safety 92,318
Roads and bridges 273,506
Public health 11,064
Judiciary and court J4.057
Public welfare 808
Total depreciation expense | 8 | 507,575

Depreciation expense for the business-type activities’ was as follows.

Sunny Acres Nursing Home § | 202,023
Countryside Estates of the County 94,825
Total depreciation expense 8 | 296,848

Depreciation expense for the Menard County 911 System was $33,056.

Capital assets activity for governmental activities for the year ended November 30, 2014 is as follows -

December 1 Increases Decreases November 30
Land b J04.319 | 8 29,765 | § -1 8] 334,084
| Construction in progress 151,575 126,000 - 277,575
| Toral assets not being depreciated 455,894 . 611,659
Capital assets being depreciated |
Buildings and improvements 3,496,385 511,533 | | - 4,007,918
Equipment ; 1,973,054 40,263 - 2,013,317
Vehicles 1,402,906 158,857 - 1,561,763
Roads 11,163,914 - - 11,163,914
4,252,582 - - 4,252,582
tal assets tted 22,288,841 710,653 - 22,999,494
Less nccumnfmed deprecmtmu Sfor i |
Buildings and improvements (2,637,377) (159,149) S (2,796,526)
Equipment (1,827,509) (68,865) - (1,896,374)
 Vehicles (1,181,643) (75,885) = (1,257,528)
| Roads (4,998,487) (148,890) - (5,147,377)
Bridges (982,267) {54,786) - (1,037.053)
Total uccmmtmed deprecmtinn (11,627,283) (507,575) - i (12,134,858)
ﬂ_{'ﬁc_ﬁﬁaﬂ el 10,661,558 203,078 = 10,864,636
Governmental activities, capital ]
assets, net S| ILII7A452 | S| 358843 | § -| 8| 11,476,295
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS - continued

Capital assets activity for business-type activities for the year ended November 30, 2014 is as follows —

December 1 Increases Decreases November 30
_ bt deovecinion [; B - -3 =
Capital assety bemg depmcmred
Buildings and improvements 6,632,782 64,690 - 6,697,472 |
 Equipment and vehicles 1,465,256 59,374 - 1,524,630
Total assets being depreciated 8,098,038 124,064 - 8,222,102 |
Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings and improvements (4,151,411) (231,293) - (4,382,706)
Equipment (1,212,679) (65,553) - (1,278,232) |
Total m:cumu!a!ed depreciation (5,364,090) (296,848) (3,660,938)
Total ¢ being
deprecinted, net 2,733,948 | | (172,784) 2 2,561,164
Business-type activities, capital _
assets, net 5| 2733948 | 5| (172.784) - 2,561,164
Capital assets activity for the enterprise funds for the year ended November 30, 2014 is as follows —
| December | | | Increases Decreases November 30
Sunny Acres Nursing Home:
Capital assets heing depreciated ]
Buildings and improvements 3 4,235,131 | § 04,690 -| ¥ 4,299,821
Eguipment and vehicles 1,366,663 46,521 - 1,407,184 |
Total assets being depreciated 5,595,794 111,211 - 3,707,005
Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings and improvements {2,853,198) {140,489) - (2,993,687)
Equipment (1,117,683) (61,534) . (1,179,217)
Total accumulated depreciation (3.970.881) | | (202,023) - (4,172,904}
capital assets, net 8| 1624913 | S| (90.812) -1 3 1,534,101
December 1 Increases Decreases November 30 |
 Countryside Estates of the County:
Capital assety being depreciated |
| Buildings and improvements $| 2,397,651 % - -8 2,397,651
| Equipment 104,593 12,853 - 117,446
2,502,244 12,853 - 2,515,097
Less accumulated depreciation for
| Buildings and improvements (1,298,213) (90.806) - (1 ,38_5?, 019y
Equipment (94,996) {4,019) - (99,015)
Total accumulated depreciation (1,393,209) {94,825) - (1, 488,034)
Co Rstidas af the Coun
S| 1109035 | § | (81,972) -8 1027063 |
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Capital asset activity for the County’s discretely presented component unit for the year ended November

30, 2014 is as follows -
December 1 Tncreases Decreases November 30
ngm‘ mm‘s bz g deprmfed
| Equipment 5 7ElLII3 | 8 - - ¥ 751,113
Total assets being depreciated 751,113 - - 75LLI3
Lgess accumulared depreciation for
Egquipmerni (599,064) f33,056) - (632,120,
T mﬂf accumufal‘ed dep recmfwﬂ_ _ (599,064) | (33,056) - f ﬁﬂ,fzﬂil
13152049 s| (330s6) | 5] 15| 118,993

6. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Interfund balances at November 30, 2014 consist of the following —

General Special Revenue Funds | Proprietary Fiduci _{
Fund Major Nonmajor Funds Funds Toral

General
Fund 5 -| §| 85392 - § 46,274 | 3 97080 | 8 | 228,746
Special
Revernue
Funds -
Major 5,267 - - 29,027 34,294
Nonmajor 26,000 4,810 11,773 121 10,128 52,832
Proprietary
Funds 775 - 184,000 - - 184,775
Fiduciary
Funds - - 10,000 - 1,061 11,061
Total §| 32042 8| 90202 205,773 | 8 46,395 | 8| 137296| 5| 511,708
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£

LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt obligations® activity for the year ended November 30, 2014 was as follows —

| ' Due
Beginning Ending mext
Balance Additions Reductions Bialance year
Governmental Activities:

Invalinenrcantract 1§ | 60.0M0

Business-fype Activities:

_Revenue Bonds

Long-term obligations for the governmental activities consist of —

A $50,000 loan due to the Tllinois Finance Authority Ambulance Revolving Loan Program; the terms of

the loan agreement do not require interest and the loan must be repaid in annual installments of $10,000
through November 2019,

Debt service requirements at November 30, 2014 are as follows —

Governmental Activities

Year ending J ]

November 30 | | Principal Interest Total
2015 10,000 - | 10000
2016 10,000 -| | 10,000
2017 10,000 - | 10,000
2018 10,000 - | 10,000
2019 10,000 10,000
Total §| 50,0008 - | 8| 50000

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT, BUSINESS — TYPE ACTIVITIES

Menard County had previously entered into an intergovernmental agreement with the State of Illinois to
assist the Illinois Department of Healthcare and Family Services in administering an alternate Medicaid
reimbursement methodology for county owned nursing homes. The Menard County Board of
Commissioners designated that the administrative allowances earned because of the County’s
participation in the alternate reimbursement process, and the related interest income, net of any
operating costs, be retained and restricted for future financing needs. The agreement hecame effective
for services provided on and after October 1, 2002. The State terminated the agreement on September
30, 2006 and Menard County, as an owner and operator of a county owned nursing home, was then
required to participate in the administration of the alternate Medicaid reimbursement methodology in
accordance with new rules and regulations of the State of Illinois’ Department of Healthcare and Family
Services, While the agreement was in effect, both versions, the related financial transactions were
accounted for in the County’s Intergovermmental Transfer Fund. After the agreement was terminated,
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the Swumuy Acres Nursing Home Fund commenced administoring and accounting for the alternate
Medicaid reimbursement process, and the nct assets of the Iefergovernmenial Transfer Furd were

designated as capital reserve by the County*s Board of Commissioners, and transferred to, and segregated
within the Sermy Acres Nursing Home Fund in November 2006,

The agrecment for participating in the alternate reimbursement process ended in September 209, The
Medicaid reimhursement rate for 2010 and 2011 remained consistent with the 2009 rate via a fonding plan
that was approved by the federal government in June 2011; that successor arrangement for the Medicaid
reimbursement methodology was and is 10 consist of a mormal daily reimburscment amount to be earned
monthty and a supplementary amount to be carned quarterly. It was and is the inient of the County’s
Board of Commissioners that the supplemental amounts earned will be reserved and restricted for future
capdtal and Anancing needs as they are collected.

9. PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes attach as an caforecable licn on real property as of January 1 in the yvear in which ¢he
taxes are levied. The County bills and colleets its own property Laxes and also the taxes of other Coonty
Laxing districts, The taxcs are geocrally payable in twe installments on Juoe | and September 1.
County property faxes are recognized as revenues when levied o the extent thal they resull in currend
receivables. The collection and remittance of property taxes to the County and other tmaxing districts is
accoumied for through the Conaty Collector's General Tax Fond, a fiduciary fond.

The unaudited individual fund tax rates and limits during the years ended November 3, 2014 and 2013
are as follows:
RATES PER 5100 OF EQUALIZED ASSESSED VALUATION
(2013 EQUALIZED ASSESSED VALUE $252,402,623)
(2012 EQUALIZED ASSESSED VALUE §246,797,561)

Actual Rate Legal

2013 2012 Limit
Creneral Fand 048 3123 4350
Retirement amd FICA Fund 2744 2743 Naogre
Liuhility Insurance Fund ooz HI83s None
Emergency Medical Services Fund 1267 J299 2500
Taberculosis Frund 034 0035 L7300
Creneral Assistanece Fund 06 S7G foeg
Coungy Fuir Fund IR 142 D204
County Bridge Fund D51 497 Ao
Federal Aid Mateking Frind N 497 A
Coursty Highway Fund Jo38 Jo24 Wil
Romd Repair and Maintenance Fund 5K JSGT 500
Conperative Exiension Service Fund N NN RiATL

Torad rate LIfds __LOP6Y
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10.

11.

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires collect them,

to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service
from the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, and
(3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in
other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations. Interfund transfers for the yvear ended
November 30), 2014 consisted of the following -

General Special Revenue Proprietary
Fuand Frnds Funds Total
Major Nenmajor B

General Fund 5 - 5 - 106,338 | § 60,000 | § | 166,338

Special Revenue ~
Muajor 208,824 - - - 208,824
Nonmajor 161,601 - 3.000 - 166,000
| Praprietary Funds 40,401 - - 379315 419,716
| Total S| 410,225 | § - | 111,338 | $ 439315 | § | 960,878

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

The County maintains three defined benefit pension plans through the Illinois Municipal Retirement
Fund (IMRF), an agent multiple-employer plan. They are as follows -

Regulgr Plan 03042R

Plan Description — The County’s defined benefit pension plan for regular employees does not include
elected officials and certain law enforcement personnel. Tt provides retirement and disability benefits,
post retirement increases, and death benefits to its plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions
are established by statute and may only be changed by General Assembly of the State of Tllinois. IMRF
issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. That report may be obtained on-line at www.imrforg.

Funding Policy — As set by statute, Regular Plan members are required to contribute 4.50 percent of
their annual covered salary. The statutes require employers to contribute the amount necessary, in
addition to member contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. The
employer contribution rate used by the County for calendar year 2014 was 8.68% of annual covered
payroll. The required employer contribution rate for calendar year 2013 was 9.49%. The County also
contributes for disability benefits, death benefits, and supplemental retirements, all of which are pooled
at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are set by the IMRF Board of
Trustees, while the supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by state statute.

Annual Pension Cost — The County’s required annual pension cost for the Regular Plan for the year
ended November 30, 2014 was $442,113. The County contributed $442,113.

Three —Year Trend Information for Regular Plan 030428

Year ending Annual | Percent Net Pension
November 30, Pension Cost | Contributed Oblisation
2014 ] 442,113 100% | § -
203 3 477,978 100% | § -
2012 | § 467,859 0% | § -
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The required contribution for 2014 was determined as part of the December 31, 2012 actuarial valuation
using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.5%
investment rate of return (net of administrative and direct investment expenses), (h) projected salary
increases of 4.00% a year, attributable to inflation, (¢) additional projected salary increases ranging
from 0.4% to 10.0% per year depending on age and service, attributable to seniority/merit, and (d) post
— retirement benefit increases of 3% annually. The actuarial value of the plan’s assets was determined
using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over
a five-year period with a 20% corridor between the actuarial and market value of assets. The plan’s
overfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payrolls on
an open 19 year basis

Funded Status and Funding Progress — As of December 31, 2014, the most recent actuarial valuation
date, the Regular plan was 103% percent funded., The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was
510,119,336 and the actuarial value of assets was $10,444,345 resulting in an overfunded actuarial
accrued liability (UAAL) of $325,009. The covered payroll for calendar vear 2014 (annual payroll of
active employees covered by the plan) was $5,037,226. Because the plan is overfunded, there is no ratio
of the UAAL to the covered payroll. The schedule of funding progress, presented as Reguired
Supplementary Information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Elected County Officials Plan 03042E

Plan Description — The County’s defined benefit pension plan for Elecred County Officials provides
retirement and disability benefits, post retirement increases, and death benefits to its plan members and
beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by statute and may only be changed by General
Assembly of the State of Illinois. IMRF issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained on-line at

Funding Policy — As set by statute, the County’s Elected County Officials plan members are required to
contribute 7.50 percent of their annual covered salary. The statutes require employers to contribute the
amount necessary, in addition to member contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own
employees. The employer contribution rate used by the County for calendar year 2014 was 50.01% of
annual covered payroll. The required employer contribution rate for calendar year 2013 was 37.11%,
The County also contributes for disability benefits, death benefits, and supplemental retirements, all of
which are pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are set by the
IMRF Board of Trustees, while the supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by state statute.

Annual Pension Cost — The County’s required annual pension cost for the Elected County Officials Plan
for the year ended November 30, 2014 was $135,709. The County contributed $135,709.

Three —Year Trend Information for Elecied County Officials Plan 03042E

Year g Annaal Percent Net Pension
November 30, _Pension Cost | Contributed Obligation
2014 § 135,709 100% | $ -

| 2013 $ 147,809 100% | § -
| 2012 $ 151,118 100% | § -
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The required contribution foy 2014 was determined as pari of the December 31, 2012 actuarial valuation
nsing the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The actwarial assumptions incleded {a)} 7.5%
investment rate of return {nct of administrative and direct investment expenses), () projecied  salary
increnses of 4.00% a year, afiributable to inflation, (¢) additional projected salary increases ranging
from (.4% to 10.0% per year depending on age and scrvice, attributable to seniority/merit, and (d) post
— retirement benelit increnses of 3% annoally, The actuarial value of the plan’s assem was determined
using techmigues that smooth the effects of shori-term volatility in the market value of investments over
a five-year period with a 20% corridor between the actuarial and market value of assets. The plan’s
overfunded actuarial accrued liability is heing amortized as a level percentage of projected payrolt om an
open 19 year basis

Funded Statuy and Furding Progress — As of December 31, 2014, 1he moost recent agtoarial valeation
date; the Elected Connty Officials plan was 35% percent funded. The actuarial acerued liability for
benefits was 51,179,577, and the actuariat value of assets was 5424283 resulting in sm anderfunded
actuarial scerued liability (UAAT) of $765,294, The covered payroll for calendar vear 2014 (anoual
payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $265,528 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered
payroll was 288%.

The schedule of tunding progress, presented as Regeired Suppiementary Information following the notes
io the Minancial stitements, presents multivear trend information about whether the actoarial value of

plan asscis is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the aciwarial aceroed liability for benefits.

Sheriff’s Law Enforcement Personnel Plan 030425

Plan Description — The County's defined benefit pension plan for Skerlff°s Law Enforcement Personnel
employees provides retirement and disability benelfts, post retirement increases, and death benefits to jts
plan members and beneficiaries. Benelit provisions are established by statnte and may onky be changed
by General Assembly of the Stale of Dlinois. IMRTF issues # publicly available [inancial report that
mclodes financial statements and reqnired sepplementary information, That report may be obtained

on-line at nyyaimriorp.

Funding Peficy — As set by sintute, the County's Sheriff’s Law Enforcement Personanei plan members are
required Lo contribute 7.50 percent of their annual covered salary. The statutes require emplovers (o
contribmte the amount necessary, in addition W member contributions, to Anance the retircment
coverage of its own employees. The cmployer contribution rate used by the County for calendar vear
201 4 was 21.41% of annual covered payroll. The required employer contribution rato for calendar vear
2013 was 19.43%. The County also contributes for disability benefits, death heneits, and supplemental

retirements, all of whick are pooled at the IMRF level. Contribation rates for disability and death

benefits are set by the IMRF Board of Trustees, while the supplemental retirement berefits rate is sct by
state siatute.

Ansuad Penston Cost — The County’s regquired annual pension cost for the Sherif’s Law Enforcemeni
Personnel Plan for the year ended November 30, 2014 was $108,722. The County contributed $108,722,

Three —Year Trend Information for Skerifs Law Enforcencry Personrel Plas (30425

Yeur ending Anauaf | Percent Net Lenston
November 30, Fension Cost | Cotitributed Obligation
2014 5 108,722 i | ¥ -
293 |8 102,557 | ek | 8| -
2012 5 103,511 | mew s | -
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The required contribution for 20114 was determined as part of the Deccmber 31, 2032 actuarial valuation
using the entry age normal actwarial cost method. The achharial assumpbions ineluded {a} 7.5%
investment ratc of retarn (oct of administrative and direct investment expenses), {(b) projected salary
increases of 4.00% a year, atiributable to inflation, (c} additional projected salary increases ranging
fram 0.4% to 10.0% per year depending on age and service, atiribuiable o senivrity/merit, and {d} poat
— retirement benelit increases of 3% annoally, The actuarial value of the plan’s assets was determined
nsing techniques that smooth the cffects of short-torm volatility in the markel value of investments over
a five-year period with a 209 corridor betwveen the actwarial and market value of assets, The plan’s
underfunded actuarial acerucd liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on
an open 29 year basis.

Funded Stwtus and Funding Progress — As of December 31, 2014, the most recent actnarial valuation
date; the Skeriff’s Law Enforcement Personnel plan was 60 perceat funded. The actoarial accrued
liakility for benefits was 51,689,685 and the actwarial valoe of assets was $1,018,362 resulting in an
underiunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of 5671,323. The covered payrofl for calendar year
2014 (annual payroll of active employees covered by 1he plan) was 5504,048, and the ratio of the UAAT,
to the covered payroll was 133%

The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information following the notes
o the finnncial stitements, presents multivear trend information about whether the actnarial value of
plan asseds is increasing or decreasing over time relative o the actuurial acerued linbility for benefits,

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS

The County sponsors deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
Section 457. The plang are available to all County employees at their option and permit pariicipants o
defer u portivn of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation and accumulated earmings
arc aot availeble to participants nnt] termination, relirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. The
plans’ assets have been placed in trust for ihe exclusive benelit of plan participants and are nat incloded
in the County’s Anancial statements. The Counly has no fiduciary responsibility tor the plans® asscis.

INTEREST EXPENSE

There were no intercst costs ineurred by the governimental activities, The business-rype activities did nol
incur any interest costs.

ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

Emergency Medical Scrvices® operations and the operations of the Menan] Couvnty Henlth Depariment
arc significantly fumded with both Medicare and Medicaid revenues.

The majority of Sunny Acres’ Nursing Home's residents receive Medicaid insurance benefits throogh the
State of inois Department of Healtheare and Family Services In these instances a substamtial portion of
the nursing home’s fee for resident care services is received dircetly from the State of Hlinois. Amounts
due from ihe Stute of Illinois for Medicaid reimbursements penerally are in arrcars threc to five months,
Sunny Acres began providing Medicare serviees to eligible residents in late 2004, Approximately seventy
percent of the nursing home's revenue is derived through and from Medicare and Medicaid.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Mcnard County participates in the Illinols Couniies Risk Manapement Trust ¢o finance and manage its
potential risk of loss related to tors; thefl of, damage to, and desiraction of asscts; errors and emissions;
injuries to employees; and natural disaster. This is an arrangement by which certain Illinois countirs pool
risks andd funds and participate and share in the costs of reinsurance arrangements. There was no
sigoilicant reduction in sk coverage from 2013,

The County is self-insured for State of Illinvis unemployment compensation purposes. Such casty, it any
are funded after notification from the State of Illinois.

Commercial insurance arrangements were previpusly uscd Iry the Connty to provide groop medical and
hospiialization henefits for its employees. During 2011 ihe County Board of Commissioners decided thai
Menard County shonkd self fand the economie costs of providing group type medical and hospitalization
benefits for its employees. This self funding arrangement ok cllcet on July 1, 2011. The cconomic costs
of 1his risk reteslion arranpement included payment of relaled claims up to cerlain threshold amaoxss,
preminm enstx for acquiring reinsurance protection for claims in excess of the threshold amounts, and
certain adminisirative costs.  Eligible, participating cmplovecs of the Couniy’s gevernmental activities and
business—type activities contributed 1o ¢the plan as did the County. An intermal service fund, the Self
Irsurance Fundwas uscd to account for this risk retention activity. Internal scrvice funds, by definition,
are wsed by governmental eotilies to account for the Ooancing of goods or services provided by one
department or agency of the government to other departinents or agencics of the government on a cost
reimbursement hasis, It was expected that rates would be developed annually to adequately fund the costs
of this sclf insurance activity, inctuding an up-front, $50,000, working capital advance from the Creneral
Fumd 585000 at November 30, 2013, if conditdons warranted. The Mceopayd County Board of
Commissioners_ discontinued the self funding arrangemeni effective December 31, 2013 aod replaced it
with an arrangement that is similar o 3 commercial insurance arrangement,. There was no sigmificant
reduclion in risk coverage, and the_fund_balance deficit at that date, 54401, was ahsorbed hy the
Covnty’s (reneral Fapd and was accounted and repoded as a fond teassfer to ihe Self Insurunce Fund in
2014,

COMMITMENTS

Approximately $768,00 of the ronds ard bridges restricied nel asscts is committed for current and fatarc
expected road and bridge construction projects.

CONTINGENCIES

The County pariicipates in several Federal and State award programs and also derives revenues from
Medicare and Medicaid. These programs are subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or
their representatives. Manapement belicves that amy liability for reimbursement, if any, which may arise,
as the result of these andits will not signilicantly impact the County’s (inancial position.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On December 1, 2014, the Menarnd County Board of Commissionets entered into 8 management contract
with Heritage Operations Group LLC, ont of Bloomington, Tinois. Heritage will mapage Sunny Acres
Nursing Home and Countryside Estates of the County for Menard County and provide related consulting
services to the Board of Commissioners. The contract is for an initial period of three years and contains
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privisions for termination, if necessary, as well as an option to cxtend the coniract for an addilional three
year period. Heritage will be puid a monthly management fee at Lve percent of net padent revenus, as
defined in the contract and will he reimbursed for its costs of providing Sunry Acres with an administrator
duriayg each year,

Subseguent evenls were evaluated throueh May 11, 2013; the date that the financial siatements were
available for issuance. Evcnls or transactons occurring afier November 30, 2014 and prior to May 11,
15, if any, that provided additional evidence ahout conditions that existed at November 30, 2014 have
been recognized in the financial statements,

NEW GOYERNMENT ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The Governmenlal Accounting Standards Board isswcd a ncw accounling sirpdard in Fcbruary 2009,
This statesnent, Fired Baforce Reporting and (oweramestal Fund Type Definitions, ealablished new and
revised accounting amd financial reporting standerds for wnits of povernment that use and report
governmental funds. Tt established criteria for classifying fund balamces imte specilically delined
classifications and clarifies definitions for governmental fund types, The County commenced application
of the relevant provisions of 1this new statement on December 1, 2010, There was no significant impact on
the dolermination of net position and fupd balance amounids.

The Governmental Acconnting Standards Board issuwed a new acconnting siandard in June, 2012, This
statemenl, Accounfing and Financial Reporting for Pensions, among other requirements and changes,
revises and establishes new financial reporting standawds for most povernments that provide their
employees with peosion benelits. This statement requires that governments providing defined benefit
pensinns to recognize their unfunded net long term obligations for pension benchts as a liability, if any, for
the first time in their statement of [nancial position which will entail immediate recognition of more
pension expense than is presently required in the statement of activities. These new linancial reporting
requircmenits will be effective for the County far the fiscal year ending November 30, 2015,

MENARD COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT

The Menard County Health Depariment is a “blended” component uait of Menard County. This
relationship is discussed in Note 1. The Health Department is fiscally dependent on the Connty, Tn the
past, the County had extended the Health Department a $53¢,M0 line of credil for inlerim accoants
teceivable [inancing needs. This revolving toan arrangement was with the County’s General Fund and
escalated o $208.824 during the vear as a conscquence of the Health Department’s deteriorated [inancial
condition The Health Department’s home health services, a subsiantial comporcat of the Department’s
service mix for many years and a funding source for the poblic health services, had been contracting
drasticatty during the past several years and the Depariment had also expericneed unanticipated eredit
lasses in that regard. The Health Department’s Board and management made the decision to suspend
home health services inn February 2014 afler a Medicare survey performed by the Hlinois Department of
Public Health revealed that the Menard County Health Department was not in complinnce with the
applicable conditions of participation for a home health agency, The Menard Coonty Health Department
atiempted o renew its home bealth license with the Ilinois Department of Public Health; however the
licensc was not renewed,

The Menard County Board of Commissioncrs has hecn committed {0 asswring thai public health serviees
continue to be provided threughont the county, The Commissioners and the Health Department’s Board
entered into # onc year management agreement with the Sangamon County Health Department in Augusi
2014 whereby Sangumon County will provide public health services for Mcnard County for a fee of
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$60,000 zonually plus Menard Connty’s  basic health graat from the Ilinois of Depariment Public Healih,
363,201, Tt is expected that this arranpement will continuc into the foresecable futore.
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MENARD COUNTY, TLLINOIS
GENERAL FUND

BUDGELARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YFAR ENTHED NOVEMEBETR 34, 2004

Varionces -
Positive (Negativel
4 Budget
Budgeted Amounts Agtual Originalty Budget Final tn
Original Final Ampunts Finu! Avlunl
REYENIIES
Property taxes 5 77500 §  TTAS00 5 77153 5 - ] {1,747}
Federul and Stale payments 1,290,038 1,290,038 1,332 92T - 93,250
Fincs, Fees, forfeitures and licenses 439,780 435, TS0 406,924 - (32,826}
Charpes lor services 161,540 161,540 141,540 - (20,0000}
Other 10,150 14,150 17,759 . 7,609
Enlerest 23,00 25,000 15,171 - {9,820
Total revenues 2,706,578 2,706,578 27414074 - 3h, 496
EXIENDITULLES
Gencral goveynment 1, 20013584 1,117,354 1,034,112 A3 R3.0172
Tublic safety 1,163,455 1,193,955 1,2L60,55% £, I [ L&, 31H3)
Judiciary and court 562,800 362,509 501503 n aft 3k
Counly develepmeni 6,350 h, 350 6,250 - LLLLY
Tartal expeniditures 2,233,494 2580453 2,753,383 A3.000 127115

FXCESS REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES (226.920) {173,920 (10,30Y) {33,000} 163,611

OTHER FINANCING SOURLCES [USES)
Operating transfers in {oul):

From Sunoy Acres Nursing Home Fond &l (0] i, 000 [A[R1]T]] u -
From County Clerk Trocoment Sinrage Fuml [RLEL L] LLIRIL 10,000 - -
From County Farm Fund S0 00 21,000 Wil i u -
Brom Prabation Serviee Funed - - - - -
From Sherill's ¥ehkicle Fund L4400 1,400 1,400 - -
TFrom Circoit Cleck Qperation aml Administrative Fund UL 200 S - -
From Ui Equipment Fund 4,80 4, Rl 4,035 - (7R
Tu Health Department Fupd {3,600} (136,505 {208,824} {133,205) (72014
1o Animal Control Fund (31.000) {51,000} {51,000 - -
To County Elections Fund {6000 FoILINN) {60 N1} - -
T Sl Insurance Fund n {39,555) {40,401 (30.555) {84dA)
To Building [Improvement Fund {170,000} 50,2400 (500003 119,764 240
Total ather financing sources (uses) {117,500 (170,500) (241,KR7) (S3000) (73387
NET CHANGE TN FUND BALANCE {344,420 (344,420) {254,196) - Y, 224
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 1,961,328 1,961,325 1936154 - 24,526

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 8 1,618,908 % 1,616,905 51,731,958 b3 - ¥ 115,05
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS
GENERAL FUND

HUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOYEMEER 34, 2014

VYariances -
Fositive (Megative)
2019 Bndget
RBudgeted Amounts Aripal Original tn Hudget Final ta
Oripinal Final Amounots Final Actual
REVEMNUES
Real esmate Laxes & 770, H0 ¥ 7TIHO00 ¥ Tohall L - ¥ (1,989}
Mobile home privilege taxes 40 400 451 - Al
Shelter rent in Jicn of taxes 3,100 3,100 3191 - 1M
Federal and State payments:
Pergonal property replacement tax s0,710 50,710 49 647 - (1,043}
Sales 1ax 236,200 236,200 159,287 - 23,087
County supplemenc! sales (ax 133,300 133,500 147,657 - 14,157
State income tax 630,044 630,00 461,943 - 30,943
Inheritance tax - rebate - - - - -
Salary reimbursements 240,225 146,223 167,271 - 21.043
Federal awards - - 782 - T8
Stawe awards - - 4,3H) - 43210
Fines, fees, forfeitures and licenses:
Circnil Clerk fees and fines 185,000 155,000 17,556 - (14,444}
Counnly Clerk Fees 180,000 180,000 154,864 - (25,1363
Treasarer and Colleetor Tocs 33,000 33,000 36,391 - 3,502
County Sherifi fees 20,000 20,000 23074 - 3.074
State's Attorney jees 4,500 4,500 3,320 - (074
Foning lees 16,800 Lo A00 17,462 - 662
Other 450 450 250 - (200}
Charges for services:
Honsing federal prisonees and others 20000 120,000 - - (20000
Salary reimbursements 141,540 141,540 141,540 - -
Other 10,150 10,150 17,759 - T.60%
Interest 25,0006 25.N0G i51m - (9.529
TOTAL REVENLLS § 2,700,578 $ 2,700,578 £ 2743074 5 - by 36,494
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MENARD COUNTY, I1.LINOTS
GENERAL FUNE

NUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOYEMBER 30, 2014

Varianoes -
Pesitive (Megative)
2014 Dudget
Builgeted Amounis Acinal Qriginal Ly Dudget Final 1o
Original Final Anrnunts Hinal Actual
EXPENIMTLRES
{rencral governiment:
Building and greunds - Courthouse:
Ralarics of custodians F 55751 5 55,751 5 57548 g - % 2,097
Cleaning supplies . - - - -
Qperating fuel 300 X 207 - 3
Electrical, plum bing, ete B0 g00 - - 800
Building repairs and maintenance LS 13,500 15,257 - 14,757)
Landscaping 2,000 2,000 1.857 - 143
Flectricity and natural gas 25,000 25,000 20.11% - 4,882
Water and sewer 1,006 1.00) 1,0m - (1)
{zarbame disposal 650 A5 T4 - |
Ranitation, cleaning, Jdisinfecting T.R0d 7,804 7,415 - 385
Tutal building and prounds - Courithouse 103,801 113,511 104,372 - {571}
Office of County Cleri and Recorder:
Salary of County Clerk and Recorder 62.051 62,051 42,051 - -
Salaries aud wages 86,084 86,084 85,333 - 751
Stativnery and office supplies 3,751 3,750 4,953 - (1,233}
Ofice equipment L)) 00 244 - St
Copy machine supplies 1,801 1,800 - - 1,800
Rooks, periodicals. manuals 100 100 - - 100
Postage 4,100 4,200 3720 - 1480
Auto mileage and travel expense 1,400 1,400 561 - 3319
Legal aolives ar publishing 100 100 - - 100
Printing, duplication, binding 100 100 - - Lin
Telephone 1,700 1,708 1,742 - (42)
Maintenance of office equipment Ga0 G0 S48 - 52
Dhues and e berships 400 400 270 - 131}
Instruction and schoaling 250 250 11 - i
Cornpulier related 1,300 1,300 KET - 413
Total County Clerk and Recorder 164,135 164,135 158,550 - 4 855

3



EXFENDITLURES
Geperal government (continued)

MENARD COUNTY, ILLINGIS

GENERAL LIUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDLILE
FOILTHE YEAR ENDED NOVEMIOER 3, 2014

Office of County Treasurer and Collector

Sulary of Covnty Treasurer and Collector

Balyries aml wapes
Stationery amd office supplica
Cuopy maching supplics
O[Tt cyuipment

Books, periodicals, manuals
Computer reloted

Auto mileage

Postage

Travel expense

Lzzal notices or publishing
Frinting, duplicating, hinding
Teleplione

Maintenance of ottice equipoment
Dues and mermbershipa
Mstruction and schooling

Total Counry Treasurer and Colleehor

O fice of Snpervisor of Assessments:

Sulary of Supcrvisor of Assessments

(30% reimbursed by the State of 1inpis)

Salarics anil wagzcs

Per dicm

Stationery and office supplies
Copy machine supplies
Office cquipment

Books, pericdicals, manoals
Computer related
Frofessional Tees - appraisals
Auto mileage

Fostage

Telephone

Travel expenac

Lugnl potices or pubiishing
Prioting, duplicating, hinding
Drues and memberships
Instrizetion and schauling
Mapping mainterance

Tutal Supcrvisor of Asscssmenty

Yariances -
Positive {(Mepatbve)
2014 Budget
Budgeted A mounis Avctual Crriginal to Budget Final ta
Original Hinal Amynats Final Actnal
62,051 62,051 62,051 - -
52,341 521,343 31,043 - 4]
1,10 1,716 1113 14 1
350 350 350 B -
50 130 116 120y 14
90 10 aH 4 2
200 200 167 - A3
4,100 4,101} 4,094 - G
100 (111]] 97 - 3
GO0 515 134 (85) 181
nl} sl S02 - K
1,100 1,185 1,179 85 &
1,500 1,500 | - 178
151 151 150 - 1
- 100 100 100 -
124,841 124,541 123918 - 933
62,051 62,051 62,051 - -
66,573 00,378 al,5TH - 4,000
500 500 G4l - (141}
1,000 1,000 33M - o6
1, iy 1t 444 - Si6
250 250 - - 250
H20 620 a3 - 522
S0 S0 - - S0
2,000 2,000 104 - 1,R9%
3,000 3,000 2507 - 11
1,600 1,600 2,078 . {47%)
By #00 L177 . am
&,000 6000 - - 6,000
500 500 537 - (37}
250 250 215 - 15
1,000 100 340} - Rl
1,04 10100 - - 000
148,644 148,640 131.62% - 17021




MENALD COUNTY, ILLINOIS
GENERAL TUND

EIIDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEMLE
IOR TIE YEAR ENDED NOYEMBER 34, 2014

Yariances -
Pusitive (Negative)
2014 Budget
Hudgeted Amounts Arknal Ciriginal b Eudzet Final ta
Oripinal Tina! AnLounis Final Aelual
EXPENDITURES
General poverunient (coutlnued)
Connty Coordinatr and Loning Administrotor @

Salaries and wupres 4,048 RO dd 37,239 - 12,704
Per dien 3,000 50040 (M0 - 4,800
Sentipnery and ollice supplics 400 500 484 { L0 14
Copy machine supplics ]l 10 - 100 RHL
Cice equtipient 200 00 - - ri[1])
Prostape BU 500 gl - 1%
Dooks, pericdicals, manvaks 150 151 - - 150
Conputer expense 10k 1 o8 - 2
Amen mileage L00g 1 D L] - ]
Travel vxpense 200 M - - 200
Leépal woliees or publishing 1,[HH 1K (110 - LI1D
FPrinting, duplicanng, binding - - - - -
Telephnme L200 izna TG - 470
Dues and membrerships L) o0 10 - Ll
Instrpction aud schoollng 200 amn - - M
ORice cquipment greaber than 5500 - - - -

Toll County Coordivalor TlhALA T4 d5. 514 - 26054

her:

Salaries and wnges - - - - -
Compensation of Copngy Commissioners 40,00 40,000 35,13 - 140567
Ter diem 4.3 4,320 - - 4,320
Stafionary and oflice supplies 1,000 14000k 173 - 727
Enoks, periodicaly, mannqls - - - - -
Information Lechneslopy 470441 7040 38,268 - TIT2
L onnty's share of expenses of Regional

Superintendent of Schacls” (e 35,730 35,730 35,728 - rl
Meonrd Connty Rescue Squad - - - - -
Inquest nnd aufopay fees X)) 10,0100 10474 - [876)
Stafe of Hlinois revenne stamps 60,000 &0A00 B 040 - 5360
Aunditing and nccounting services 44,150 44,150 42,3510 - 1500
Consnifing serviees 16,000 [ XHI] i 100 1000 -
Auto mileage 2,000 .00 Ji3 - 1,087
OiMice equipment 4,810 £ 352 5,275 [342) 7
Travel expenses S oJ - 437 L]
Lipal nertives or puhlishing 200 Tik T4 N2 1
Frinting. daplicatlap, and bioding - 4z 52 (82}
Cuourt repurting 00 S0l - - S00
Surety Bods 200 200 an - 1)
Health lusurance 243,610 223610 117,135 2,000 6475
Tefcphone 00 200 - - 200
Dues anel memberships 1,560 1,000 n7 - B3
Conlingeneics S0, 00 2,000 Bz 44,000 1,108
Oiher 4,500 11,495 5056 (4,535) 1439
OfMice equipment vver K30 20,000 10,000 §24% Ler0} 752

Total other expenditures SEN, 460 505,461 466,030 B3 a00 32 4H)

Total penecal grvernment [ 200384 1,117,284 1,034,312 53,000 3072
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOQIS
GENERAL FLNDY

BUDGETARY COMARISON SCHEDLLE
FOR TUE YEAR ENDEDR NOYEMDER 30, 2014

Yariaoeos -
Puzitive (Mepative)
2014 Dudpct
DBedested Amounls Actuak Chriginal (o Dudect Final (v
Original Final Amoirnta Final Actnal
EXTFENDITLUIRES
Fublic safery:
OvTice of Connty Shevilf - Law Enforcement:
Salary of SherilT 70,138 T 135 70,138 - -
CHher salarics aod wages 265,583 866583 892,142 - {13,550
Stalionery and supplics 2,000 2000 N b | - (1,121)
Copy machine supplics 1,500 1,500 846 - L5d
Books, periodicals, manuals 1,500 1,301 1,562 - (G2
CHlee cquipment 1,041 1,001 158 - LEK
Computer related 5,100 5,100 5,487 - . 1387
Inmate supplies 2,00 2,00 1,452 - S48
Medical, dental, and nursing fees 30,00 30,001] 43,622 - (13,622)
Prisomer firod and meals 25,000 23,0006 10971 - 4,029
Gasoling, cquipmend, and supplics 40,000 40,000 36,304 - 160G
Clothing, noiforms 10,000 10,000 13,204 - (3,904}
Operational supplics 4,000 4,000 2557 - 1443
Towing and hauling 500 300 - - S04
Postage 2500 2,500 X5 - 2,115
Legal notices ov puhlishibag 130 50 - - 350
Electricity and gas L6, 000 16,000 113452 - 4608
Telephone 17,000 17,000 241 - {3421
Wailer and sewer 5,500 8,500 4 690 - #10
Carbage dispusal T T 1,104 - (389
Amtomulile maintenaoece 18,000 18,060 17,5357 - 443
Mobile squipment maintenanee 5,000 5,000 5,273 - 273)
O e equipment maiotcnaoce 1,501 1,500 - - 1,504
Lands¢aping maintenance 5218 523 0 - {193
OMMice equipment leases 5,300 5,410 5,308 - {8}
Przes and memnherships 2,135 2035 2,965 - {5303
Jamitorial 9,100 2,100 3537 - 3,163
Housing prisonces in other conolics 10,000 10,000 G1% - 371
Travel cxpehse 2,500 2,504 1,500 - 204
Convention 1,000 1,000 - - 1,000
Instruction and sehonling 6,000 f.000 T30 - (1314}
Couoty Sherill {carried forward} 1,162,455 1,162.455 1,175,562 - (13,107
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINGIS
GENERAL FUND

BUMETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOYVEMBER M), 2014

Yariances -
Positive (Mezative)
2014 Budget
Budgeted Amounts Aciual Original to Budget ¥inal to
Original TFinal Amaunis Final Actual
EXPENDITURES
Mublic salcty (contitoed)
Office of County Sherill - Law Enforcement:
County Sheriff (brought forward} 1,162,455 1,162,435 1,Y75,5362 - {13,107
Investigation costs 500 S0 2,067 - (1,567}
Fhriographic equipment - - - - -
Autamotive equipment - 30,004 32,659 {30,000} (2,659
Radio cquipiment son S(H) 122 - X3
Qffice equipment over 3300 - - - - -
Oiher S04 S(H) 448 - 52
Total Public Safetly 1,163,955 1,193,955 1,210,558 {3,000 (16,903
Judiciary and court vefated:
(Hfice of State's Atorney:
Salary of State's Atiorney { 100% reimbursed

by the State of INlinois) 131, 5} 131,500 115,524 - 15974
Olher salaries and wages 41.045 41,045 37310 - 3,735
Stationery and office supplics A.260 3050 330 {750] S0
Qffice equipment 515 515 207 - 113
Copy machine supplics 1300} 1,300 1,053 - 47
Boolks, pericdicals, manuals 4,30} 3,550 3010 50 531
Computer related 120 120 g - 21
Contraclual services - - - - -
Court reporting B0 800 SRA - 215
Witness fees 1,000 1,000 58 - 242
FPostage 1,000 1000 950 - Al
Travel 7S RTS K74 - 1
Legal natices ar publishing K111 304 136 - 14
Telephone 2,HE 2,00 1,233 - TGT
OMMee equipment maintenance 200 200 - - 200
Dues and memberships TTs 1,175 1.083 {4k 92
Imstruction and schocling 825 825 350 - 475
Investigation expense 1,0} N - 400 G0
Mliscellanenus Fecs 100 (L) - - 100
State's Attorney appellzfe service 5,000 5,000 5,000 - -

Total State's Armrney 195,865 195,865 171,493 - 14,372
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MENARD COUNEY, ILLINOIS
GEMNERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISDON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEARR ENDHED NOWYWTMEBILR 30, 2014

Variances -
Positive (Nepative)
2014 Budeet
Budgeted Amounts Agtnal Original te Budget Final to
Driginal Tinal Amounts Final Aciual
EXPENIHTIIRES
Judiciary and court related (conlinged)
Offee of Cirewit Clerk:
EZalary of Cireoit Clerk 462,051 62,051 62,051 - -
Other salamies and wages 7182 07,282 55,323 - 10,058
Stationery and office supplies 4,000 4,000 3,744 - 250
Copy machioe supplivs - - - - -
Books, peciodicals, manuals - - - - -
Computer related 1100 10} 9% - 1
Ao mileage 200 200 - - 208
Posiage 4.0 4,000 1,503 - 4015
Friuting, duplicating, binding - - - - -
Telephone 1AM 1,500 1,737 - 63
OMice cquipment maiotenance - - - - -
O fice equipment rental 2,000 2,000 1,552 - 143
Drues and memhershinps 251 251 5 - L
Tocal Clrenit Clerk 171,684 171,684 152,305 - 12,379
Ehe Courls of ¥icnard Counly:
Juror fecs 4,000 4,0y 1,619 - 2,381
OMice equipmicns 1,000 51 usi a0 -
Etatinmery and oMice supplics 1400 1,450 1,461 (5 (10}
Books, perndicals, manuwals 5,000 LR 4,571 - 129
Jurors’ fond and meals 00 S0y 17 - 483
Computer relabted 100 100 pLS - 2
Cuourl repurling 2,000 2,050 430 (50) 1414
Legal - guardian ad litem, atiorney fecs, - - -
judpe's salary, etc. 45,00 65,000 49.010% - 15,030
Services for juveniles 1,000 1,000 - - 1.00)
Witnesses 500 200 - 300 200
Auto mileage 400 400 - - 400
Travel expenses S00 S0y - - S0
Telephnne ond 1, HIG 850 {10} 150
Medical, dental and oursing fees S0 TS0 750 (2300 -
[nzstruction ani schouling Limn 1, W0 619 - A8l
OlMice equipment maintenaoce L0000 00 173 110 ey
Other 400 01} 132 - 215
Postage 60 600 o0 - 410
Dues and memberships Fa0 350 - - 350
ORiee equipment greater than $50H) - - - - -
Total Conris of Menard County w150 86,150 62,155 - 23,905
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MENARD COUNTY. ILLINOIS
GENERAL FLIND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOYVEMBER 30, 2014

Yariances -
Pasitive {Negative)
2014 Duedyet
Budgeted Amounts Avtual Crriginal to Budget Final tv
Origioal Final Amounts Final Aciual
EXPENDITURES
Judiciary aod court related {vontiousd)
P'robation office:

Halaries rnd wages (41 %, reimbarsed 104,110 109,110 1094018 - 100

by the State of Tlinnis)
Statienery and oMice supplies - - - - -
Travel and aulo mileage - - - - -
Legul nutices or publishing - - - - -
Postage - - - - -
Telepliane - - - - -
nstruetion and Schooling - - - - .
Office equipment - - - - -
Cumputer expense - - - - -
Totzl probation ofTice 109,110 100, 110 109,010 - 100
Tatal judiciary and courl reloted a2 H09 562,802 01,963 - 40,540

Conrty development:

Soil Conscrvation 635 63510 0,250 - 100}
Total County development 6,351 f35) £,250 - 190
Total Expenditures ¥ 2933498 5 2580408 ¥ 2,753,183 i 5300 b 127,115
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOLS

LIABILITY AND INSURANCE FUNT

BUDNGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOYEMDER 34, 2814

REYENUES
I'roperiy taxes

Total revenues

EXPENDITURLS
Liahility and insirance

Tuatal expenditures

EXCESS REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDHTURES

FLUND BALANCE - HEGINNING

FUND BALANCE - ENDING

Variances -
Positive (Negative)
2014 Budget
Budgeted Amounis Astual Original Lo Budygel Final to
Original Final Amounts Final Actual
249,500 § 249,500 5 253,705 b - 5 4,205
249,500 249,560 153,705 - 4,205
272,070 272,070 246,225 - 25,845
2724070 272070 246,225 - 25,845
(22,37 (22,570) 7,480 - 30,050
457,785 457,780 457,471 - (318)
F 435,219 5 435219 3 404,951 ¥ - + 28,733
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REYENLUES
Frapery (axes
Fublic safety sales tax
Federal and State payments
Chargees for services
Orther
Interest

Total revenues

EXFENDITURES
Public safety:
Salaries and wages
Ietivement

Unemployment compensation

Health insurance

Fnsurance and risk management

Operational

Repair and maintenance
Hents and leases
Telephane

FProfessivnal assistance
Other

Eauipmen acguisitivns
Interest expense

Total expenditures

EXCESS REYENUES OYER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SCVURCES (1IRES)

Opereting iranslers in {put)
From Geoeral Fund

Total ather litaneing sourées

NLT CHANGE IN ¥FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING

FUND BALANCE - ENIMNG

MEMARD COUNTY, ILLINGIS

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES I'UND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOYEMBER. 30, 2014

Yartanees -
Positive (Megative)
2014 Budgel
Budgeted Amournk Actoai Oviginal tv  Budgel Final i
Original Final Amaunis Final Actual

5 Ri14%0 5 31470 §F 310.B02 ¥ - % (G08)
445,000 445,000 484977 - 8977
- - 174696 - 17.696
431,535 431,535 464,678 - 35143
- - o930 - a3
1,198,005 1,198,005 1.2%89,083 - 91078
THE,5TT 788,577 751,000 - 37,568
123,00 123,000 114,143 - 3,857
TT,000 SB,900 56,357 18,104 1,543
71,115 77,115 Th,115 - 1,000
35,300 38,200 3n, 1461 17,300 2,009
28,000 M, 200 AL 664 (56000 536
15,35 25,350 215,345 - 5
9,200 6,700 6,378 2,500 122
i, 500 32,800 20,049 3700 3,751
L4, 150 T1.[50 607 3,000 2,543
123800 162.50H) 139,534 (35000} 3,266
el 341 a0 - 271
1,359,153 1,359,153 1,204,652 - G250
(1&1,148) (181, 145) (7.569) - 153,579
(161,148 (161,148) {1560 - 173,574
309,674 M0.674 333424 - 23,750
£ 145516 & 148,526 ¥ 315855 b3 - § 177329
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MEMARD COUNTY, ILLINCHS
HEALTH DEPALTMENT FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDLLE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOYEMEBER 30, 2014

Varianees -
Posttive (Megative)
204 Budgpet
Budgzried Amounts Actnal Qrigingl 10 Budget FFinal i
Original Finai Amounts Final Actuxsi
REVENTES
I'edeval and State Gyant Programs £ 185090 & 133000 £ 11314660 ] - s {7530
Mome 1eadth Care Program 146,645 146,645 5,503 - {141,080)
Health Depariment fecs A1.570 &Y,571} 56,924 - (2h641)
Lnterest - - 35 - 358
Total revenues 419,305 419,305 176,159 - (143,114)
EXPENDITURES
Fullic health:
Salarivs and wapey 241,700 241,70} 146,206 - N3 404
Office 1,063 1065 93 - 1472
Operationzl 27,155 27,155 15,514 - 112341
Contractual services 51,5685 51,585 44,734 - G A51
Professional fees 13,831} 13,830 57T - 060
Transpiriation L3380 13230 2,344 - 11,034
Publishing amd printing 3,215 3215 2,681 - 2,534
Risk managenient cosls 3,600 A0 2,70} - o
Health Insurance 43,260 43,2460 17,032 - 25328
1tiditics 19,114 19,1100 13,172 - 5,038
Repair and maintenance 12,100 12,240 =37 - 11,663
Rents and leases 201,080 20.0%0 05 - 0,775
Oriher £330 2500 16,704 - (7.514)
Total expealiturey 462,070 462,070 R2.584 - 179,486
EXCESS REVENLES OYVER (UNTIER) FXPENDITURLES (42.765) {42,705} (106,393) - (63,0307
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USEES}
Operating transfers in (oul)
From General Fumld 1600 3,600 208,824 - 5,224
Total vther financing sources 3,600 3601 208,524 - 205,224
NET CHANGE 1M 'UMD BALANCE (39,1065) (39,165) 102,425 - 141,594
FLNID BALANCE - BEGINNING £38,282) {38,282) {102,429} - {64,147)
FUND DALANCE - ENTHNG 5 (7747 8 (TTA4T 5 - b - 5 TA47T
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REVENLES
Properoy taxes
Federal and State payments
Charges for services
Other
Intercst

Tetl revenues

EXPENDITURES

Roads and bridpes:
&olaries and wages
(fice
Operatonal
Maintenance
Coostruction
Professional fees
Transporiaticn
Fublishing and priotiog
Health and olher insurance
Ltilitics
Repair aud mainenance
Rents and leascs
Right of way
DBridges aod culverts
Road Improvements
Connty wide sign npgrade
Treainage iImprovements
Fguipmient aoquisitions
Other

Total roads and bridges

NET CHANGE TN FUUND BATANCTE

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING

FUND BALANCE - ENDING

MEMNARD COTUTNTY, ILLINOIS

COINTY HIGHWAY FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOYEMBYH 3), 20014

Yarianees -
Fosilive (Negativa)
2004 DBudget
Budygeted Amonnts Actual QOriginal to Budget Final to
Original Tinal Ao iy Fina! Actual
5 241,030 $ 261,130 F 260,795 - % (335)
92,000 02,000 24 307 - (67,693}
280,500 280,500 3333Th - 52,876
11,000 11,000 14,122 - 3122
4 000 4,000 4,111 - 111
644,630 448,630 635,711 - (11,919
270,050 231,050 268,626 (2,000} 12,424
5,500 5,500 2,267 - 3,233
135,500 135,500 LL1LL12 - 24,388
2,214 2,200 449 - 1,751
33,300 I3,500 469 - 3g03
T,300 72,500 28.014 - 43,886
3,500 14,500 5003 (11,000 5,507
2,000 2000 454 - 1.546
G, G000 66,0800 54,843 - 2757
20,1010 20,104 15,422 - 44078
40,000 58,000 oy, (i 2,000 11,930
22,000 22,000 14,810 - T.11M)
5,000 5,000 - - S0
1,000 1,004 - - 1040
150,000 150,000 184 - 149816
55000 T, 200 G015 (21,200} 69,385
5000 5,000 - - 5,000
193200 164,600 4,495 33,600 16,105
5,000 6,400 A016 {1,400} T84
1,126,650 1,126,650 570,939 - 535,711
{47542 (478,023 65,772 - 543,792
THL2EG 00,216 Tol 450 - 01,234
$ 222,19 ¥ 212,196 5 Hirz22 - ] 605,010



MERNARD COUNTY, TL.LINOQIS
CONUNTY MOTOH FLEL TAX FUND

BUDGETARY COMIARISON SCHETMILE
FORTHE YEAR ENDED NOYEMBLER 30, 2014

Yariances -
Tusitive {Nepative)
2014 Builget
Budgeted Ammunis Aciunl Uriginal to Bedgel Final 1o
Uriginal Final Amounts Einal Actual
HEVENUES
Federal gnd Sisie peymenis 5 320,000 5 3zh,0nm ¥ 390,006 5 - b 0,603
Interest 200 200 81 - {117
Total revenues J20,200 320,200 300,657 - T 48T
EXFENDITURES
Ruad and hridges:
Safarics sad wages 110,000 111,305 111,305 {1,305} -
Stationery and supplies - - - - -
Asphalf and road oil 225,000 27875 227,443 (20675) 232
Cinders - - - - -
Salt 16,000 21,750 22969 (11,7507 {1,219}
Appregales 0,000 40,000 2036 - 57,904
Centferline painl 10,0010 TA25 - 1675 T35
Engineering - - - - -
Hauling 10,0000 8,655 23 1,305 8,44
Kead maintenange 12,0} 12 (e} TR75 - 4125
Keuts nnd leases 15,000 3,250 7,293 11,750 £4.043)
Bridges and culveria - - - - R
Roadl improvements 35,000 X5, 0400 - - 35000
‘I'otol expenditures 48T I 487 000 379,152 - 107 848
NET CHANGE IN FUNT BALANCE (166,500) (166,500} 11,535 . 174,335
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 549,561 549,561 54572 - 35811
FUND BALANCE - ENDIMG ¥ 382,7hl 5 382,761 ¥ 506,007 5 - ¥ 214,140
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MENARD COUNTY, TLLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS (REGULAR)
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

November 30, 2014
Annual
Year Pension Percentage Net
Ended Cost of APC Pension
Naovember 30, (AFC) Contributed Obligation
2009 § 188,493 100% ¥ -
2010 $ 463,261 104% 8 -
2011 § 462,772 100% % -
2012 § 467,839 100% g -
2013 £ 477,978 100% s -

2014 442,113 100% 3 -
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS (ECO)
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

November 30, 2014
Annual
Year Pension Perceniage Net
Ended Cost of APC Pension

MNovember 31, {APC) Contributed Obligation

2009 $ 126,054 100% b -

2010 $ 162,948 100% S -

2011 $ 149349 100%, 5 -

2012 £ 151,118 100% ) -

2013 147809 100% 5 -

2014 $ 135,709 106% S -
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EMFPFLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS (5LEF)
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

November 30, 2014
Annuai
Year Pension Percentage Net
Ended Cost of APC Pension
November 30, (APC) Contributed Obligation
2009 b 833,145 100% 3 -
20140 b 105,987 10024 % -
2011 £ 105,065 100% b -
2012 £ 103,511 100% b -
2013 £ 102,557 100% b -

2014 & 108,722 100% $



“PAPNNY &4 007 S SHAINAd 30} AJTTOEI] PRIIS3C [ELIOLAT 3y ], 5834124 10] S)ONCIE IPR|2 0 300 op L34 [,
U007 PAEUIJY 1A TIPIID FHAIDE Akl N4 SIF(IAT AATIACU] PUE JATLIIE A2ADI AJ1|IUE]] PINIIIE PUE 5JI558 10 DIEA |ELAGAJIC DY L

"SR1LTOTL A0 PINGS DUES AP ] SSISE AT kA JYIRIM B Uy

TRLFIT OIS 81 F10T FIE A3QWaRI] f0 56 SO55E [0 30 |4 [BIZENIIE 3] ‘SISHG ANjKa JayIeW K uyy ——ajny]

GLePTD OTTLED'SE la0'szsl % wn 1TE00 HEGITOT § SPCFPFOT FIASTT
TRTL CRIFESO'SY (rL1"808) g % 8001 QOSSO £ OFL'ESE0T § fLTERL
LTl 19T LAESE 095 B0P § o 06 54 CTF PG & BULELEG e ¢ TLELL
WS cOgETIcH FS9'50R S L0 16 ELE'LTE'G S GIGISFE % TTET
BLRETL- LEOPILTSE T50°TRE % oo 1656 081'IFE'G % FEI'DER'E % 017141
Lo LOT'LLH' MY LALETE i L %R TEF TG Y SeURIL‘E 9§ GOECTT
(54} 112448 L (-7 (i) F0y LU - sjassy Nk
I[o44tg pataan]) revolsven) T3]3 (v inpgery Joangeg UGNENTE A
paJaAnsy o (=) IYY paputg PANTINY [HIIEMSY JELnIaY [ETIRDNIAY
sEmmaniag v sy {papurian(l} (£ (z) (1
(TYYO) f IYF papunyury
(r)

FTOT OE 1aqurasny]

ONAT INAWAATLTE TVJIOMOIW SIONTTTI
vVINOTA} SSAND0E INITNIA 40 A TNATHIS

SLOMITI " AINNOD T VNI



5

PAPULY S5O0 51 53230 i SR pARISaE JHAEnIaR M SaaTlRd 0] sunotg apuam jon ap L]
SI0E) PABMALY H1IM 3 LA 301ATAS FARLY OO S180 TSI $AL3ET] PUE SATIE JAA0D LJN[IGYL] PRNI3NE PUT 1855 J0 30 [H4 [ELIENPIE 21,

ToGTLG A PIMGMA UTIEL PAPUDG BYL CSISE] IN|EA JFHLE M F 0L

OLLTEELS S1 FLOL '1E 490 L203¢] JO S 513558 JO 3n]RA [ELIRISE AIT) 'SI51] 3N[RA J|IKTH R U ——map]

% T 88T 8I5C9T & BGT0L g VAd ey LLEGLT'T § ERTFTF & FLAEL]
el L IECE8E & {Le0g) g LGa 101 LLTRIST g PIGREET § £IEZT
e OTE- FOIEGE % EE0BGTT g LIRS EIE6d'T % FETe6E TS/
T RYE- oTHFRE § SOFEREL s Sl T 0SH Lek'T % Le&'E0I' D & 1LETT
st TR LEL ILE & LUFDEL' 5 L8000 SONPSET 5 IPETOR § OL/TESTT
WO a T TLE'RIE § £R0°0PS'[ £ Lol TOE (3% i g 12 TR CT1E YA |

{&8) ¢ (k) ljeideg {1}- (o) (Th (N ol A3y - SIS ¢ nEq

HOAAE] rEckily) Iwwol /Iy UL | (V) AR Joaneg TDONENTEA

pRdaac) Jo ] I¥Y papang PANIIFY |ELIEN)DY [ELENRY [eOEnay
VAL B 5V (papun)izacy) [Ex] (z} (1
Y YO IYYDE [Aponyo

i)
FIOT “0F 2RqWas0y

N INTAWAHLLTT AV NDI SIGNI T
{003 SRTHDO0Nd DNEAKNA A TFMITHDSE

SIONITTI FAINNOD IV NI



i

“pAPUNY 400 ] 51 S33I1A 40] ANIHTI] PRI [EIACILIE 31 ], "Fa9002d 107 SJE N0 AP|aO] 100 ap £a7) [
"AUNGT PARUELY YA HPAII AITAISE JATE 0L SI2QTHILN SARENL FUT 2ALJE 43403 A B[Ej] PAISIE PUT $J0558 JO DNTA [FMEN]DE J01]

‘ag pTTRE A0 N[HOA O1F] P2RUN] 3] ‘SISEG A0 BA JAYIRT K ¥Q)

THOPTR'TE 51 TTOT “IE 1 Tada] J0 SE FJa55e J0 3N[EA [EIIENIIY ] “SISE] AT CA BTIET B U —---30)

HBLECL SPFNS Lyl LY wL LT 00 LRU RN £ TUCRIO'T & FLALETE
9EL0%T BEG'EES CFT168 & YobELL b2 4172 A S ORHELFT  § CIALETI
SLTTLET GYE 8FS 9TEL S %6500 09 606°1 S FEROSI'L % TIACLI
2286601 LFRLS [&1'9E9 % L EERY ooz % EOC0UET % LIETY
SLTE 90T TEL'66S FLOLED 3 SRS THEELLYT % ROSECI1 % 01AACHT
WHiF I FEURCL LES'ISS § YaPs 69 BIOTIET % IeFeslT $ GO/EETTT
5 ) lio1doy (1 -@ ) a0y ANy - RAsEY areq
1adoy PRIIADT) COYvOr s FIvva) orL | (TY¥) AIgerT LI EFY TOTENLE A
pRAAADTY [0 () vy papung PENANY [ELTNRY (IR ELY [2aEngY
2B ng ¥ Y (papunyiasp) (€ b4 in
rTY¥0) 1 TYvA papumjufy
%)

P1OT 0 JaquiasoN

A5 ANFWTALLAE TN SIONITEL
{AA TS SSTHIHIMA SINIANTED A0 A0S

BTONITTI “AINAO0D TIVNIW



MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS

NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the year ended November 30, 2014

1. BUBGETS AND BUBDGETARY ACCOUNTING

Budget amounts are delermined on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
prineiples for the specilic fund types.

Appropriation balances Inpse at year-emd; comseguenily, the County does not wtilize
encumbrance accounting, a system by which porchase orders, contraects, and other
commitments for the cxpenditure of resources are recorded to reserve that portion of the
applicable appropriation.

The County generally follows these procedures in establishing its budget —

1. Im October of each year, the County Board of Commissioners develops a proposed
operating budpet for the fiscal year commencing the following December 1. The
budget includes proposed expenditures and 1the means of financing them for virinally
all of the County’s individual fands.

2. A copy of the proposed budget is placed on [ile with the County Clerk for public
inspection,

3. Each vyear tbe budget is adopied by resolution of the Cousniy DBoard of
Commissioners,

Afer adeption of the budget, further approprialions are prohibited for appropriated
funds except in the evenrt of an emergency. Transfers from oone appropriation of any vae
fund to another appropriation of the same fund, not affecting the total amount
appropriated, may be made at any mecting of the County Board by a vote of the
members.

Formal budgetary integration is cmploycd during fhe year as a management control
device. Appropriation balances lapse at year-end. The follgwing governmenisl funds had
an excess of actaal expenditures over budgeied expenditures for the vear ended November

30, 2014,
. B j wditprrey |

N i
Actual Apdger | | Excess

Nonmajor Frends |
Conry Services Fuod J| 39533 | % I8,834 699
Ruitding fmprovement Fund | § | 552,023 | § | 475,04 FAE23
Esmergency Relicf Fund §| 3451 8 3,000 | 8 i
Serior Transport Fund J| 4H54% | § 35386 | 8 | 6T




MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS
Notes fo Required Supplementory Information — Continued

A manzgcment budget is prepared each year for the hwo enterprise funds that comprise the
County’s business-type activities. The County Board of Commissioners’ and management’s
expectations for Surny Acres Nursing Howme and Couniryside Extates of the Cosurnty resulis of
operations is abways greater than what is documenied in the management hudgets for those
operations,

2. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

The County maintiins three defined benefit pension plans through the Illinois Municipal
Retiremeni Fund {(IMIXF), an agent multiple-employer plan, They are as follows -

Repalur Plan 636428

Pian Description — The Courty’s defined benelit pension plan for regular employees does not
include elecied officinls und ceriain law enforcement personnel, Tt provides rcoiirement and
disability henefits, post retirement inereases, and death benelis to ity plan members and
heneficiaries. Benelit provisions are established by statute and may only he changed by Gencral
Assembhy of the State of THinois. TMRF issues a publicly available inancial repord that includes
fnrncial statements and required supplementary information, That repore may be obtained on-
line at www.imrf.org,

Funding Policy — As set by smiute, Regutar Plan members are required W contribute 4.50
percent of their anouwal coversd salary. The stalutes require etnployers {0 contribute the amount
necessary, in addition to member contributions, to inance the retirement coverape of ils own
employees. The employer contribution rate used by the County for calendar year 2014 was
8.68% of ponnal covered payroll. The required emplover contribution rate for calendar year
2013 was 9.49%. The County alse contributes for disability benefits, death beneliis, and
supplemental retirements, all of which are pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for
disability and dcath benefits are set by the IMRF Board of Trustces, while the supplemenial
relirement benchits rate is sel by statw statute,

Amisal Pension Cosé — The County’s required annoal pension cost for the Regudar Pian for the
year ended November 30, 2014 was 5442,113. The County contributed $442,113,

TRree —Year Trend Infarmarion for Regufar Plan 03042R

_ Fearending | Annnaf Fercend Met Persion
Neverher 30, Persion Loyt | Contributed Dhfigation
2014 $ 442,113 1% | 3 -
2013 § 477,978 100% | 3 - |
2072 ¥ 47,859 | 100% | & -

ii

The required contribution for 2014 was determined as part of the December 31, 2012 actuarial
valuation nsing the entry age normal acioarial cost method. The actuarixl assnmptions included



MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS
Notes to Required Supplementary Information — Continued

(a) 7.5% investment rate of return (net of administrative and direct investment expenses), (b)
projected salary increases of 4.00% a year, attributable to inflation, (c) additional projected
salary increases ranging from 0.4% to 10.0% per year depending on age and service,
attributable to seniority/merit, and (d) post — retirement benefit increases of 3% annually. The
actuarial value of the plan’s assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of
short-term  volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period with a 20%
corridor between the actuwarial and market value of assets. The plan’s overfunded actuarial
accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payrolls on an open 29 year
hasis

Funded Status and Funding Progress — As of December 31, 2014, the most recent actuarial
valuation date; the Regular plan was 103% percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for
benefits was $10,119,336 and the actuarial value of assets was $10,444,345, resulting in an
overfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $325,009. The covered payroll for calendar
year 2014 (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $5,037,226; because the
plan is overfunded there is no ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information following
the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liability for benefits.

Elected County Officials Plan 03042E

Pian Description — The County’s defined benefit pension plan for Elected County Officials
provides retirement and disability benefits, post retirement increases, and death benefits to its
plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are cstablished by statute and may only be
changed by General Assembly of the State of Illinois. IMRF issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report
may be obtained on-line at www.imrf.org.

Funding Policy — As set by statute, the County’s Elected County Officials plan members are
required to contribute 7.50 percent of their annual covered salary. The statutes reguire
employers to contribute the amount necessary, in addition to member contributions, to finance
the retirement coverage of its own employees. The employer contribution rate used by the
County for calendar year 2014 was 50.01% of annual covered payroll. The required employer
contribution rate for calendar year 2013 was 37.11%. The County also contributes for disability
benefits, death benefits, and supplemental retirements, all of which are pooled at the IMRF level.
Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are set by the IMRF Board of Trustees, while
the supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by state statute.

Annual Pension Cost — The County’s required annual pension cost for the Elected County
Officials Plan for the year ended November 30, 2014 was $135,709. The County contributed
$135.709.

Three —Year Trend Information for Elected County Officials Plan 03042F

Year ending Annual Percent Net Pension

Novenber 30, _Pension Cost | Contributed Obligation
2014 5 135,709 100% | $ -
2013 5 147,809 100% | § -
2012 ] 151,118 100% | § -]

i



MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS
Naotes to Required Supplementary Information - Continued

The required contribution for 2014 was defermined as part of the December 31, 2012 actuarial
valnation using the eutry age normal actuarial coslt method. The netwarial assumplions inchuded
(%) 7.5% invesiment rate of return (net of administrative and direct investment cxpenses), {h)
projccted salary increases of 4.00% a yewr, attributmble o inflation, (¢} additional projected
salary ipcreases ranging from 0.4% to 10.0% per year depending on age and scrvice,
attributable to seniority/merii, and (d) post — relirement benelit increages of 3% annually. The
actuarial value of the plan’s assets was determined using technigues that smeoth the effects of
shori-term  volatility in the markel value of invesiments over a five-year period with a 20%
corridor hetween the actmarial and markei valee of assets. The plan’s overfunded actuarial
accrued liability is being amnrtized as a level perecniage of projecicd payrolls on an open 29 yeur
brasis

Frunded Status and Funding Progress — As of December 31, 2014, ihe most receni actuarial
valuation date; the Elected Crusnty Officials plan was 35% percent Funded. The actuarial
accrued Hability for benelits was 51,179,577 and the actuanal value of assels was $424,283
rcsulting in an underfunded acuarial accrued [iability (UAAL) of $755,294. The covered payroil
for ¢calendar vear 2014 (anonual payeoll of active employees covered by the plan} was 526%,518;
and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 288%,

The schedule of funding progress, presented us Regulred Supplementury Informution Tollowing
the notes (v the Ainancial stateinents, presents multivear trend information ahout whether the

actuarial valwe of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the achoaral
uccrucd liability for bencfi.

Ieeriff s Law Enforcentent Personne! Plan 030425

Plor Description — The County’s defined bencfit pension plan for Sheriff's Law Enforcement
Pervomiel employees provides retirement and disability benefits, posi relirement increases, and
death benelits to its plan members and beneficiaries. Benelit provisions are estmblished by
sinfute and may only be changed try General Assembly of the State of Illinoiy, IMRF issues a
publicly available [nancial repert that includes [financial statements and  requived
supplemcatary information. That report may be obtained on-line at wonwv.imrfong.

Funding Policy — As set by statute, the County's SherifFs Law Enforcement Personnel plan
members are reguired v contribute 7.50 percent of their annual covered salary, The statoles
require employers to contribute the amount necessary, in addition to member contributions, to
finance the retirement coverage of is own employces. The cmployer contribution rate osed hy
the County for calendar year 2014 was 21.41% of annual covered payroll, The required
cmployer contrihution rate for calendar vear 2013 was 19.43%. The County alse contribotes for
disability benefits, death benelits, and supplemental retirements, all of which are pooled at the
IMRF level. Contribuiion rates for disability and death henefits are set by the IMRF Boarnd of
Trustces, while the snpplemental retirement benelils rate is sct by atate statute.

Aanugl Pension Cost — The County’s required annual pension cost for the Sheriff’s Law
Enforeement Personnel Plan for the year ended November 30, 2014 was $108,722. The County
contrihuted $108,722.

v



MENARD COUNTY, ILLINGIS
Notes to Reguired Supplementary Information - Continned

Tiree —Year Trevd Inforrvation for Sheriffs Law Enforcement Persenmel Plan 030425

Year ending i Artsid i Percent [T Net Pension
MNovember 30, Pension Cost | Comtribused Chfigatian
2014 5 108,722 | i06% | § -
2093 ¥ 02,557 0% | 5 -
2012 3 103,511 108% | § -

The reqaired contribution for 2014 was determined as part of the December 31, 2012 aciparial
valnation using the entry age normzl actuarial cost method. The actwarial assumptions included
{1} 7.5% imvesiment rate of relurn (net of administrative and direct invesiment expenses), (b}
projected salary increases of 4,00% a year, altributable 1o inflation, {¢) addilional projected
salary increascs ranging from 0.4% to 10.0% per year depending on age and service,
atiributable to seniority/meri¢, and (d) post — retirement benefit increases of 3% anouwally. The
actuarial value of the plan’s assets was determined using techniques that smoolh the cffects of
short-term  volatlity in the market value of investments aver a Ave-year perind with a 20%
corridor between the acivarial and market value of asscis, The plan’s vndfundcd aciuarial
accrued liability is heing amortized as a level percenmge of projected payrolls on an open 29 year
basis.

Funded Status and Funding Progress — As of December 31, 2014, the most recent nctuarial
valuation date; the Sheriff’s Law Enforcement Personnel plan was 60% percent fanded. The
actuarial accrucd liahility for benefils was 31,089,685 and the actuarial value of asseis was
51,018,362 resulting in an underfunded actuarial acerued liability (TTAAL) of 5671323, The
covered payroll for calendar year 2014 (annaal payrofl of active employees eovered by the plan)
was $504,048, and the ratio of the UAAT. 10 the covered payroll was 133%;

The schedule of funding progress, presented as Reguired Supplementary Information follirving
the notes to the financial statements, presents maltiyear tread information asbout whether the
actuarjal value of plan asseis is increasing or decreasing over Hme relative to the acinarial
acerucd liability for benels.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REYENLE FUNDS
Retirement and FICA Fund
Ton aceount for the levy and colleetion of the anoual (ax for payment of the County's
contribution to the Uniled States Social Security System and the 1llinois Municipal
Betirement Fund.

Tubercnlosis Fund

To account for the levy and collection of the annual tax for the purposc of providing for the
carc and trcatment of inhabitants who may be afflicicd with tuberculosis.

Animal Control Fond
To aceount for the receipt of service fees from Municipalities, registration fees and [ines,
and the payment of costs of the Apimal Control I'rogram in the County including payment
of damages o individuals for the loss of livestock and poultry, Ome-third of all fees
collected must be retained in the Fund unti] the firsi Monday in March for the purposc of
paying damage claims.
County Farm Fund

To accoant for the procceds derived trom the lcasing of farmland owned by the County and
the payment of neccssary cxpenditures. The County Board may appropriate aceemalated
procceds for general county purposes,

General Assistance Fund

To aceount for the levy and collection of the annns] tax for gencral assistance purposcs in
the County.

County Fair Fond
‘To aceount for the levy and collection of the anoual tax for County fair purposes,
County Clerk Document Storage System Fund

To account for the collection of a recording fee used for autvmating the County Clerld's
olhice.



SPECTAL REYENUE FUNDS - continued

Tax Sale Antomation Fund

To account for the collection of fees for costs related to the antomaiion of the property tax
system and delinguwent property tax nales.

County Elections Fund
To account for funds provided by the General Fund for annual elections eosls,
Court Amtomation Fund

To account for the collection of an automation fec to be used for antomating the Circuil
Clerk's office.

Cooperalive Extension Service Fund

To aceountl for the levy and collection of the anous] tax for the Cooperalive Extension
Serviee.

Senior Transport Fund

To account for the revenues and costs of providing transporiation 10 Menard County
citizens sixty years of age and older.

Building Imprevement Fund

To account for monies designated for anticipated major improvements W the County
Courthousc including the Connty jafl facility.

Court Document Storage System Fund

To account for the collection of a court document fee 0 be uwsed to establish a courl
document storage evstem in the Circuit Clerk's olTice.

Probation Services Funed

To account for funds collected and expended fur costs associated with the probation ofMice,
Tans for expenditure are subject o approval by the State probation oflice,

County Dridge Fund
To account for the levy and collection of the annual tax for the purpose of aiding in the

constructing and repairing of County bridges, culverts, grade separalions and drainage
structures,



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - continuer

Federal Aid Matching Fund
Tn account for the levy and collection of the annual tax for the purpose of providing fimds
to pay the cxpeonses for cagincering and other costs and its proporionate share of eon-
struction or maintenance of highways in the Federal primary, sccondary, or County
higlway network.
Ruoad Repair and Maintenance Fund

To account for the levy and collection of the anowal tax for the purpnse of improving,
constrocting, maintaining or repairing certain County roads.

Court Services Fund

To account for the collection of court services fees for costs related to the providing of court
securiky.

Court Fand
To account for the collection of fees from 1he Circnil Clerk for Courl improvemenis,
D.UL Equipment Fund

To aecount for the collection of fees from the Civenit Clerk by be nsed for the
purchase of equipmeni.

County G.LS. Fund

To account for the resources to implement a Digialized Geographic Information Mapping
System for the County.

State’s Attorpey Drng Forleiture Fond

To account for the receipt of drug forfeiture funds and proceeds in accordance with
provisions of the prevailing State Statute.

Fmergency Relief Fund

To account for cerfain grants and contributions received for programs to aid certain
Menard County residents in the payment of specific emergency expenditures.

Public Land Dedication Fees Fund

To account for certain zoning fees pertaining to the dedication of public lands.



SPECIAL REYENUE FUNDS — continued

Tourism Promotion Fund
To acennnt for the receipt of a county wide hotel tax to be nsed for funding cortain cosis
relating to tourism promotion, conventions, expositions, thealrical, sporty, and cultural
activities within the County.

Drug Traffic Prevention Fund

To secount for fees aad contributions received for funding ceriain costs periaining to
preventing drug trallic aclivities in the Counlty,

Circuit Clerk Operation and Administration Fund

To aceonnt for fees eollected by the Circwit Clerk that are designated for funding certain
operalions and administration costs.

Sherill Vehicle Fand

To account for fees eallected by the Circuit Clerk that are designated to assist in fundiong the
¢osls of uequiring and replacing the Sherift Departimeni®s vehicles.
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FIDUCIARY FIINDS

PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS
Law Library Fand

To sccount for the revenwes derived from the "law library" fee and the payment of
expenses incurred in establishing and maintaining a faw library. The money available in
the fund may not be appropriated by the County Board but is disborsed on order of the
Chief Cirenit Judge. The fces arc collecied by the Circoit Clerk and paid into the Law
Library Fund,

Indemnity Fund
To account for indemuity fecs paid te the Connty Collector derived from tax sales; the fund
15 10 aceomulate nodil it reaches .03% of the assessed valuation or $50,000, whichever is
greater. The purpose of the fand is to indemnify the Treasurer for judgments against the
Treasurer arising from tax sales.
Child Advocaey Center Funsl
To uccount for monics colleeted for the purpose of establishing and maintining a

Children's Advocacy Center to coondinnte the investigation, prosccution, and treatment
referral of child abuse.

ShetilT's Drug Forfeiture Fund

To account for procecds from forfeflures received by the fund and used hy ithe County
Sherifl for certain investigative and training expenditurcs.

Tux Sale in Error Interest Payment Fund

To account for certain fees collected during the tax sale process by the County Collector aml
the expenditure of those funds for court ordered payments.

Road Districis Trock Fund

To account for ceriain peoled resources of the County’s road districts for the purpose of
maintmining certain roads in the County.



AGENCY FUINDS

Circuit Clerk's Fond
Functions as a clearing account for the operations of the Office of the Circuit Clerk. Clerk's
(ees, [ines and bail bond deposits and other deposils are received by the fund and refained
antil proper disposition of the funds is determined. Fees earned are remitled to the General
Fund,

Aecounts for the collection aml distribution of ¢court-ordered child sapport and alimony
paymenis

County Clerk's Fund

Funciions as a ¢learing account for the operation of the Office of the County Clerk.  Fees
exraed arc remitted to the General Fund.

County Sheriff's Fond

Functions az a clearing account tor the operations of the Office of the County Sherifi Fees
carncd are remitied to the General Fund.

State's Attorney's Fund

Funciions as a clearing account for the operations of the OMice of the State's Allorney, Fees
earned are remiticd to the General Fund,

County Collector's General Tax Fund

To account for the collection and distribution of property taxes io the varions taxing
districls inside and outside of the County.

County Collector's Mobile Home Privilege Tax Fund

To account for the eollecijon and disiribution of mobile home privilege lax to the varions
taxing districis of the County.

Township Bridge Program Fund

To account for the collection of State allotmends to road districts for bridge construction
projcets in the County.

Township Motor Fuel Tax Fund

To aceount for the colleciion and distribution of State motor fuel tux nllotments for the road
districts of the Connty.



AGENCY FUNIDS - continued

Inheritance Tax Fund

To acconnt for collections of State inberitanee taxes assessed and thelr remitinnce (o the
Siate Treasurer.

Pavroll Clearing Funds

To account for the payment of salaries and wages ol Counaly employees, and the related
payroll axcs and ceriain employee benelits.

Tomates Fund

To aceount for commissary trapsactions at the County jail and viber amounis eredied (o
the bencfit of County jail immates.

Health Insurance Clearing Fund

To aceount for the inflows from the County ;and participating employees that are used to
fund the costs of health insurance premivms.
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